
www.eden.gov.uk
Rose Rouse
Chief Executive

Date: 19 June 2019

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF
Tel: 01768 817817
Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk

Dear Sir/Madam

Accounts and Governance Committee Agenda - 27 June 2019
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Accounts and Governance Committee will be 
held at 6.45 pm on Thursday, 27 June 2019 at the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Penrith.

1  Appointment of Vice-Chairman  

To appoint a Vice-Chairman of the Accounts and Governance Committee for the 
2019-2020 municipal year.

2  Apologies for Absence  

3  Declarations of Interest  

To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both 
disclosable pecuniary and any other registrable interests, in any matter to be 
considered or being considered.

4  External Audit Reports  (Pages 5 - 10)

To consider report F37/19 from the Director of Corporate Services which is attached 
and which seeks to set out one report from the Council’s External Auditor, Grant 
Thornton.

RECOMMENDATION that the report of the External Auditor be noted. 

5  Internal Audit: Completed Reports and Progress Against Annual Plan  
(Pages 11 - 70)

To consider report F36/19 from the Director of Corporate Services which is attached 
and which seeks to advise Member of the findings and recommendations of reports 
that have recently been completed by the Council’s Internal Audit Services, and 
progress against the agreed Annual Plan for 2018/2019.

RECOMMENDATION that the contents of the report be noted. 

6  Internal Audit Annual Report 2018-2019  (Pages 71 - 96)



www.eden.gov.uk 2

To consider report F34/19 from the Director of Corporate Services which is attached 
and which seeks to provide the Council with an assurance on internal controls that 
helps to evidence the effective of the system of internal control, as set out in the 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS).

RECOMMENDATION that the report be noted. 

7  Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations  (Pages 97 - 100)

To consider report F32/19 from the Director of Corporate Services which is attached 
and which seeks to set out progress on implementing the agreed recommendation 
from internal audit reports.

RECOMMENDATION that progress against the agreed recommendations be noted. 

8  Any Other Items Which the Chairman Decides are Urgent  

9  Date of Next Scheduled Meeting  

The next scheduled meeting of this Committee be confirmed as 25 July 2019.

Yours faithfully

R Rouse
Chief Executive

Democratic Services Contact: Karen Wyeth

Encs

For Attention
All members of the Council

Chairman – Councillor M Eyles (Liberal Democrat Group)

Councillors
K Beaty, Conservative Group
A Connell, Liberal Democrat Group
M Hanley, Labour Group
S Lancaster, Independent Group

D Lawson, Green Group
J C Lynch, Conservative Group
R Orchard, Conservative Group
D Ryland, Independent Group



www.eden.gov.uk 3

Standing Deputies
P G Baker, Liberal Democrat Group
P Connor, Independent Group
L Harker, Liberal Democrat Group
G Nicolson OBE, Conservative Group

W Patterson, Independent Group
A Ross, Green Group
D Wicks, Conservative Group

Please Note: 
1. Access to the internet in the Council Chamber and Committee room is 

available via the guest wi-fi – no password is required
2. Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 this 

meeting has been advertised as a public meeting (unless stated otherwise) 
and as such could be filmed or recorded by the media or members of the 
public



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Report No: F37/19 
Eden District Council 

Accounts and Governance Committee 
27 June 2019 

External Audit Reports 
Portfolio: None 
Report from: Director of Corporate Services 
Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 
1.1 To set out one report from the Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton. 

2 Recommendation 
 That the reports of the External Auditor are noted. 

3 Report Details 
3.1 The External Auditor has issued one report since the last meeting. This is the fee 

letter for 2019/20. A copy is enclosed as Appendix 1 to this report. 
3.2 A member of Grant Thornton’s audit team will be at the Committee meeting to answer 

any questions Members might have. 

4 Policy Framework 
4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Decent Homes for All; 
 Strong Economy, Rich Environment; 
 Thriving Communities; and 
 Quality Council. 

4.2 This report meets the Quality Council corporate priority. 

5 Consultation 
5.1 There has been no consultation with Ward Councillors or Portfolio Holders. 

6 Implications 
6.1 Financial and Resources 
6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income must be 

made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council Plan 
2015-2019, as agreed at Council on 17 September 2015. 

6.1.2 There are no Financial and Resources implications. 
  

Page  5

Agenda Item 4



2 

6.2 Legal 
6.2.1 There are no Legal implications. 
6.3 Human Resources 
6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications. 
6.4 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications 
and proposed measures to 
address: 

Equality and Diversity There are no implications 
Health, Social Environmental and Economic Impact There are no implications 
Crime and Disorder There are no implications 
Children and Safeguarding There are no implications 

6.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 
External Auditor comments 
and views are not made 
known to Members. 

Necessary remedial action 
is not identified and 
actioned. 

Proper consideration of the 
External Auditor’s reports 
is an important governance 
control and ensures that 
the independent views of 
the Auditor are made 
known to Members and 
remedial action is identified 
and actioned. 

7 Other Options Considered 
7.1 No other options have been considered. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 To keep Members updated on the work of the External Auditor. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 
Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 12 June 2019 
Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 18 June 2019 
Assistant Director Not Applicable 

Background Papers: None 
Appendices: Appendix 1: External Audit 2019/20 Fee Letter 
Contact Officer: Pete Notley, Assistant Director Finance, 01768 212209 

Page  6



Appendix A

· Grant Thornton 


Grant Thornton UK LLP Peter Notley 
11 0 Queen Street 

Assistant Director Finance - Chief Finance Officer Glasgow 
Eden District Council G1 3BX 
Town Hall 
Penrith T +44 (0)141 223 0891 
Cumbria 
CA11 7QF www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

12 Apri12019 

Dear Peter 

Planned audit fee for 2019/20 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) provides the framework for local public audit. Public Sector 
Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has been specified as an appointing person under the Act and the Local 
Authority (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 and had the power to make auditor appointments for audits of 
opted- in local government bodies from 2018/19. 

For opted- in bodies PSAA's responsibilities also include setting fees and monitoring the quality of auditors' work. 
Further information on PSAA and its responsibilities are available on the PSAA website. 

All grant work, including housing benefit certification, falls outside the PSAA contract, as PSAA no longer has the 
power to make appointments for assurance on grant claims and returns. Any assurance engagements will 
therefore be subject to separate engagements agreed between the grant-paying body, the Council and ourselves 
and separate fees agreed with the Council. 

Scale fee 

PSAA published the 2019/20 scale fees for opted-in bodies at the end of March 2019, following a consultation 
process. Individual scale fees have been maintained at the same level as in 2018/19, unless there were specific 
circumstances which required otherwise. Further details are set out on the PSAA website. The Council's scale 
fee for 2019/20 has been set by PSAA at £32,296 which is the same as in 2018/19. 

PSAA prescribes that 'scale fees are based on the expectation that audited bodies are able to provide the auditor 
with complete and materially accurate financial statements, with supporting working papers, within agreed 
timeframes'. 

The audit planning process for 2019/20, including the risk assessment, will continue as the year progresses and 
fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary as our work progresses. 

Scope of the audit fee 

There are no changes to the overall work programme for audits of local government audited bodies for 2019/20. 
Under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office (NAO) is 
responsible for publishing the statutory Code of Audit Practice and guidance for auditors. Audits of the accounts 
for 2019/20 will be undertaken under this Code. Further information on the NAO Code and guidance is available 
on the NAO website. 

Page  7



Main Audit fee £ 

September 2019 8,074 

December 2019 8,074 

March 2020 8,074 

June 2020 8,074 

Total 32,296 

Phase of work Timing Outputs Comments 

Audit planning and 
interim audit 

December 2019 to 
March 2020 

Audit plan The plan summarises the 
findings of our audit 
planning and our 
approach to the audit of 
the Council's accounts 
and VfM. 

Final accounts audit June to July 2020 Audit Findings (Report 
those charged with 
governance) 

to This report sets out the 
findings of our accounts 
audit and VfM work for 
the consideration of 
those charged with 
governance. 

P. 2 Grant Thornton UK LL

The scale fee covers: 

• our audit of your financial statements; 

• our work to reach a conclusion on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources (the 
value for money conclusion); and 

• our work on your whole of government accounts return (if applicable). 

PSAA will agree fees for considering objections from the point at which auditors accept an objection as valid, or 
any special investigations, as a variation to the scale fee. 

Value for Money conclusion 

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VfM) 
conclusion. 

The NAO issued its latest guidance for auditors on value for money work in November 2017. The guidance states 
that for local government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on whether the Council has put 
proper arrangements in place. 

The NAO guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

Billing schedule 

Fees will be billed as follows: 

Outline audit timetable 

We will undertake our audit planning and interim audit procedures in January to March 2020. Upon completion of 
this phase of our work we will issue a detailed audit plan setting out our findings and details of our audit 
approach. Our final accounts audit, work on the VfM conclusion and work on the whole of government accounts 
return will be completed by July 2020. 

Page  8



Name Phone Number E-mail 

Engagement Lead Gareth Kelly 0141 223 0891 gareth.kelly@uk.gt.com 

Engagement Manager Jamie Wright 0141 223 0603 jamie .sb. wrig ht@u k.gt.com 

In Charge Auditor John Cangley 01412230689 john.d.cangley@uk.gt.com 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3 

VfM conclusion December 2019 to July Audit Findings (Report to As above 
2020 those charged with 

governance) 

Whole of Government July 2020 Opinion on the WGA This work will be 
Accounts return completed alongside the 

accounts audit. 

Annual Audit Letter October 2020 Annual audit letter to the The letter will summarise 
Council the findings of all aspects 

of our work. 

Our team 

The key members of the audit team for 2019/20 are: 

Additional work 

The scale fee excludes any work requested by the Council that we may agree to undertake outside of our Code 
audit. Each additional piece of work will be separately agreed, and a detailed project specification and fee 
agreed with the Council. 

Quality assurance 

We are committed to providing you with a high-quality service. If you are in any way dissatisfied or would like to 
discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me in the first instance. Alternatively, you may wish to 
contact Sarah Howard, our Public Sector Assurance regional lead partner, via sarah.howard@uk.gt.com. 

Yours sincerely 

Gareth Kelly 

Engagement Lead 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Page  9

mailto:sarah.howard@uk.gt.com
mailto:john.d.cangley@uk.gt.com
mailto:jamie.sb.wright@uk.gt.com
mailto:gareth.kelly@uk.gt.com


Page  10



1

Report No: F36/19
Eden District Council

Accounts and Governance Committee
27 June 2019

Internal Audit: Completed Reports and Progress against Annual Plan
Portfolio: None

Report from: Director of Corporate Services

Wards: All Wards

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1 Purpose
1.1 To advise Members of:

1. The findings and recommendations of reports that have recently been completed 
by the Council’s Internal Audit Service.

2. Progress against the agreed Annual Plan for 2018/19.
2 Recommendation

To note the contents of the report.
3 Report Details
3.1 The Council operates an internal audit service in line with Accounts and Audit 

(England) Regulations 2015. As part of this, Accounts and Governance committee 
approve an annual programme of work for internal audit to complete. The results of 
these audits provide evidence of the effectiveness of internal control at the Council.

3.2 This report is the final report against the 2018/19 audit plan which covers the period to 
31 March 2019. The next iteration of this report will cover progress against the 
2019/20 audit plan which was approved by Accounts and Governance Committee on 
21 February 2019.

3.3 Audits Completed 
3.3.1 The following audit reports have been finalised since the last reports to the meeting of 

the Accounts and Governance Committee.
Audit Summary

Report
Assurance*
Level

Recommendations
(by Priority*)

1 2 3
In-house Service
Internal Audit Report 2018-19 – 
Creditor Payments and Orders

Appendix B Reasonable 0 0 1

Internal Audit Report 2018/19 – 
Payroll System

Appendix C Reasonable 0 0 0

Internal Audit Report 2018/19 – 
Main Accounting System

Appendix D Substantial 0 0 2

Internal Audit Report 2018/19 – 
Income Collection

Appendix E Reasonable 0 0 0

Internal Audit Report 2018-19 – 
Sundry Debtors System

Appendix F Reasonable 0 1 1

Page  11

Agenda Item 5



2

Audit Summary
Report

Assurance*
Level

Recommendations
(by Priority*)

1 2 3
In-house Service

Internal Audit Report 2018/19 – 
Treasury Management

Appendix G Reasonable 0 0 1

Audit Summary
Report

Assurance*
Level

Recommendations
(by Priority*)

1 2 3
Bought-in-Service (TIAA Limited)

All complete as at 21 February 2019

*See Appendix H for Definition of Assurance Levels and Recommendation Priorities
3.3.2 There are no further reports from TIAA Limited.  All planned audits have all been 

delivered.
3.3.3 Rejected Recommendations (Priority 1 and 2)

There were no rejections.
3.3.4 Recommendations (Priority 1 and 2) from Previous Audits Not Actioned

There is one new 2 recommendation.
4 Policy Framework
4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are:

 Decent Homes for All;
 Strong Economy, Rich Environment;
 Thriving Communities; and
 Quality Council.

4.2 This report meets the Quality Council corporate priority.  Implementation of the 
recommendations arising from internal audit reports will aid the achievement of all of 
the Council’s priorities and objectives.

5 Consultation
5.1 There has been no consultation with Councillors.
6 Implications
6.1 Financial and Resources
6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income must be 

made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council Plan 
2015-2019, as agreed at Council on 17 September 2015. There are no findings that 
directly impact on use of resources.

6.2 Legal
6.2.1 The Council operates an Internal Audit function in line with requirements of the 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. There are no direct legal implications arising 
from this report.

Page  12



3

6.3 Human Resources
6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications.
6.4 Statutory Considerations

Consideration: Details of any implications and 
proposed measures to address:

Equality and Diversity There are no implications

Health, Social Environmental and Economic Impact There are no implications

Crime and Disorder There are no implications

Children and Safeguarding There are no implications

6.5 Risk Management

Risk Consequence Controls Required
Issues raised by Internal Audit 
are not appropriately actioned 
by management.

Weak systems control, 
increased risk of theft and 
fraud.

Reporting of internal 
audit recommendations 
publicly to Committee 
and tracking 
implementation of these.

Audit programme slipping. Approved programme not 
delivered, resources not 
directed as planned and 
reported.

Regular reporting on 
internal audit progress.

7 Other Options Considered
7.1 None.
8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation
8.1 The summary reports for the completed audits and progress against the agreed Plan 

are set out for Members’ review.
Tracking Information

Governance Check Date Considered
Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 12 June 2019

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 18 June 2019

Relevant Director As Monitoring Officer

Background Papers: Agreed Internal Audit Plan 2018/19
Appendices: Appendix A: Progress against the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan

Appendix B: Internal Audit Report 2018-19 – Creditor Payments and Orders
Appendix C: Internal Audit Report 2018/19 – Payroll System
Appendix D: Internal Audit Report 2018/19 – Main Accounting System
Appendix E: Internal Audit Report 2018/19 – Income Collection
Appendix F: Internal Audit Report 2018-19 – Sundry Debtors System
Appendix G: Internal Audit Report 2018/19 – Treasury Management
Appendix H: Definition of Assurance Levels and Recommendation Priorities

Contact Officer: Pete Notley, Assistant Director Finance, 01768 212209

Page  13



4

Intentionally Blank

Page  14



5

Appendix A

Progress against the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan

TIAA Limited are shaded grey

Days Current Position

Fundamental Systems

Payroll 23 Complete, reported on this agenda

Creditors/Ordering 18 Complete, reported on this agenda

Income Collection 16 Complete, reported on this agenda

Sundry Debtors 14 Complete, reported on this agenda

Main Accounting System 21 Complete, reported on this agenda

Treasury Management/Investments 8 Complete, reported on this agenda

Fundamental Systems Consultancy 30 Work ongoing to support implementation 
of CIVICAPAY, replacement cash 
receipting system.

Council Tax 10 Audit complete – reported 21 February 
2019

Business Rates 10 Audit complete – reported 21 February 
2019

Benefits 20 Audit complete – reported 21 February 
2019

Other Services/Systems

Insurance, Risk Management and Health 
and Safety

10 Audit complete – reported 27 September 
2018

Premises and Clubs Licenses 10 Audit complete – reported 29 November 
2018

Procurement and Contract Monitoring 10 Audit complete – reported 21 February 
2019

Development Control and Building 
Regulations

10 Audit complete – reported 21 February 
2019

210

Page  15



6

Intentionally Blank

Page  16



7

Appendix B

Internal Audit Report 2018-19 – Creditor Payments and Orders

KEY POINTS

Overall Assurance Level* Reasonable

Recommendations*

Priority 1 None

Priority 2 None

Priority 3 CR14 – It should be ensured that the Bank Payment documentation used to 
support Manual Payment records is complete. 
(Previously issued recommendation which remains outstanding)

Other Issues

Due to the reasons recorded in the Annual Audit Report, the Internal Audit Plan for 
2018/19 was not completed. Creditors testing was the most badly affected by this with the 
main area of testing not undertaken being the checking of a sample of individual orders 
and invoices for correct processing and updating. All other ‘periodic’ / ‘key control’ checks 
were undertaken however, including testing of sample payment runs and associated 
reconciliations. A limited number of other ‘annual tests’ were also not undertaken and 
these are noted in the report below.
A small number of minor issues and errors were identified as a result of sample testing 
but given the volume of transactions being processed this is perhaps inevitable. 
Management / officers were notified of any corrections that needed to be made at the 
time.

Action Plan

This Final Report will be presented to the meeting of the Accounts and Governance 
Committee on 27 June 2019.
The agreed recommendations will be monitored for implementation in accordance with 
the timescales stated.

* See Appendix A for Definitions of Assurance Level and Recommendation Priorities

Page  17



8

Background

The Council raises around 1,500 orders and processes approximately 9,000 invoices / 2,500 
payments totalling around £10 million per annum via the respective modules of the Total 
Financial Management System. Invoices are processed for payment by the Financial 
Services section. Payments are made by the Financial Services Officer and orders are 
placed and processed by the Purchasing Assistants on receipt of appropriately authorised 
requisitions from departmental staff. Invoices are authorised by Budget Holders 
electronically.

The system therefore has a high level of materiality in terms of the Council’s final accounts 
both in terms of the expenditure going through the system and the recording of a significant 
proportion of supplies and services obtained by the Council.

Basis of Audit Work

The audit was undertaken in accordance with the principles laid down in the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.

Audit work included:

 establishing the objectives of the Creditor Payments and Ordering Systems and the 
management criteria for determining whether these objectives are being accomplished

 identifying the risks and controls associated with the system
 undertaking appropriate testing to establish that controls are operating consistently and 

effectively, appropriate records are kept and resources are utilised efficiently.

An assessment was then made of: 

 the extent to which defined system objectives are being met
 the adequacy and effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management and Control 

processes in respect of the system
 the probability of significant errors, fraud and non-compliance

The audit was undertaken by Gary Little, In-House Senior Auditor between June 2018 and 
June 2019 as part of the agreed 2018-19 Audit Plan. 

Page  18



9

Audit Opinion on the Achievement of System Objectives

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

Orders are placed and 
Payments are made in 
accordance with the Council’s 
Procurement Rules and 
Accounting & Audit Rules 

Based on the level of testing 
undertaken and the findings of 
previous audits compliance is 
generally good although some 
minor issues were identified.

Reasonable

All Orders and Payments 
made are supported by 
appropriate documentation 
and Financial Records are 
updated appropriately 

Previous audit work has concluded 
that orders and payments are 
generally satisfactorily documented 
and recorded with the accuracy of 
coding being good and only a small 
number of cases identified where 
the order was not correctly updated 
or where an order had not been 
raised. The work that was 
undertaken this year did not provide 
any indicators that standards of 
compliance have declined although 
the degree of confidence that can 
be given in support of this 
statement is obviously affected by 
the fact that sample testing of 
individual invoice transactions was 
not undertaken. Testing of a 
sample of weekly payment runs 
was undertaken however and no 
issues were identified with the 
verification of payment totals and 
the posting of control totals to the 
ledger were identified. 

Reasonable

Ordering and Creditor 
Payment Records are held 
securely, system access is 
controlled and appropriate 
back-up procedures are in 
place

Payment records and copies of 
invoices are held electronically and 
back-ups are regularly undertaken. 
Access to the system is password 
protected. Whilst specific testing to 
confirm this was not undertaken 
this year, evidence obtained from 
other testing indicates there have 
been no changes in this respect.

Reasonable

Orders and Payments are 
Authorised only by Approved 
Officers within set limits

Authorising Officers and respective 
limits are set within the system and 
orders and payments cannot be 
authorised outside of these settings

Substantial

Page  19



10

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

Invoices are processed and 
paid promptly and all 
payments are correctly coded 
and within approved budgets

The assurance that can be given in 
this area is limited by the fact that 
sample testing of individual invoice 
payments was not undertaken this 
year. There is a requirement that 
invoices are paid within 30 days 
and it was noted last year that there 
had been an improvement in the 
number of invoices paid within this 
timescale. Due to the lack of testing 
in this area it was not possible to 
verify whether this had continued in 
2018-19 but it was noted that it is 
proposed to include this in a series 
of Key Performance Indicators 
which are being set up as part of a 
new Performance Management 
framework being introduced within 
the Council. Incorrect coding of 
invoices has not been identified as 
a problem in recent audits and only 
the initial coding error noted below 
in respect of a ‘Periodic Payment’ 
was identified from other audit tests 
undertaken this year.

Reasonable

BACS and Cheque Payments 
are appropriately controlled 
and authorised.

Controls are generally good and 
BACS Input Reports are now being 
checked more promptly

Reasonable

Manual and Periodic 
Payments are appropriately 
controlled and authorised

Controls in respect of manual 
payments were generally good but 
it was noted that supporting 
documentation for the bank 
payments made was sometimes 
incomplete or in three cases was 
missing completely (see 
Recommendation CR14).
A number of new Periodic 
payments were identified in the 
year which related to the devolution 
of services to Town and Parish 
Councils. One of these had been 
charged to the wrong code but this 
had been identified and corrected. 

Reasonable

Page  20



11

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

Control Accounts and 
Payment Records are 
periodically reconciled.

All weekly payment run totals are 
checked and recorded and Control 
A/C Reconciliations are undertaken 
monthly although two had not been 
signed off.

Reasonable

Page  21



12

Audit Opinion on Governance, Risk and Control Issues

Issue Audit Comment Assurance

Governance It is encouraging to note that the monitoring 
of the payment of invoices within 30 days is 
to become a KPI as poor performance in 
this area could lead to criticism and extra 
costs for the Council due to failing to 
comply with the European Directive in this 
respect.

Reasonable

Risk Management Whilst there will always be a number of 
risks inherent in any payment system, 
existing controls appear to be satisfactorily 
addressing these.

Reasonable

Control Processes Controls appear to be generally sound but 
due to the restricted level of testing 
undertaken in some areas this year the 
level of confidence that can be applied to 
the stated level of assurance is impacted 
on.

Reasonable

Probability of 
Significant Errors, 
Fraud or non-
compliance

On the basis of the audit work undertaken 
the probability of these is considered low.

Reasonable

Page  22



13

Outstanding Recommendations Previously Agreed By Management

Recommendation CR14 Responsibility: Assistant Director Finance Priority: 3

It should be ensured that the Bank Payment documentation used to support Manual 
Payment records is complete.

Rationale

Sixteen ‘Manual’ or ‘Emergency’ payments were made during the year for various 
reasons. These payments are made individually via a bank transfer rather than being 
included in the regular weekly payments run.
It was found that three payments did not have any bank documentation attached, and 
eight did not have complete bank payment documentation. Only a page showing the 
officers making the payment was included and the expected Transaction page showing 
the actual beneficiary and the amount paid was missing.
A similar situation was identified as part of last year’s audit which led to the issue of this 
recommendation.

Management Response

Management acknowledge the recommendation and will consider amending the control 
sheet for emergency transactions to list all the documents required to support a manual 
payment, to be completed by the officer inputting the payment and reviewed for 
completeness by the authorising officer.

Accepted Yes To Be Implemented By 31/7/2019

Page  23



14

Intentionally Blank

Page  24



15

Appendix C

Internal Audit Report 2018/19 – Payroll System

KEY POINTS

Overall Assurance Level* Reasonable

Recommendations* 

Priority 1 None

Priority 2 None

Priority 3 None

Other Issues

The overall level of control within the payroll system is very good and only a few minor 
issues were identified during testing, none of which were significant or indicated any 
particular weakness in control procedures as they were mainly isolated errors. Notification 
of these was made to the Payroll Officer or Assistant Director Finance either verbally or 
by e-mail where considered appropriate. As a result there are no recommendations 
arising directly from this year’s audit work on the system.
Some payments were made via Payroll during the year which required further clarification 
as to the basis on which they were made. The payments were of a confidential nature 
and satisfactory explanations were subsequently provided to audit to justify the payments 
in the three cases identified.
A number of issues arose in 2018-19 (see the Internal Audit Annual Report) which 
prevented the full completion of the Audit Plan for the year. This included some planned 
payroll testing. Affected areas are noted in the report.

Action Plan

This Final Report will be presented to the meeting of the Accounts & Governance 
Committee on 27 June 2019.

* See Appendix A for Definitions of Assurance Level and Recommendation Priorities

Page  25



16

Background

The Council pays approximately 230 staff and members each month. Payments are also 
made to Canvass / Elections staff via the payroll system on a periodic basis. Gross payroll 
payments for 2018-19 were approximately £5.91m and Net Pay £3.64m.  Payments are 
processed by a ‘payroll officer’ in Financial Services via the payroll module of the Council’s 
Financial Management System (Total Finance).

The system therefore has a high level of materiality in terms of the Council’s final accounts 
and accounts for a large proportion of the Council’s total expenditure. Uncompleted audit 
testing in the year related mainly to claim forms and sickness payments which comprise only 
a small part of the total expenditure.

Basis of Audit Work

The audit was undertaken in accordance with the principles laid down in the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.

Audit work included:

 establishing the objectives of the Payroll System and the management criteria for 
determining whether these objectives are being accomplished

 identifying the risks and controls associated with the system
 undertaking appropriate testing to establish that controls are operating consistently and 

effectively, appropriate records are kept and resources are utilised efficiently.

An assessment was then made of: 

 the extent to which defined system objectives are being met
 the adequacy and effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management and Control 

processes in respect of the system
 the probability of significant errors, fraud and non-compliance

The audit was undertaken by Gary Little, Senior Auditor (In House) between June 2018 and 
June 2019 as part of the agreed 2018-19 Audit Plan.

Page  26



17

Audit Opinion on the Achievement of System Objectives

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

Salary payments are made in 
accordance with national 
legislation, local agreements 
including the Pay Policy and 
Conditions of Service and the 
Council’s Accounting & Audit 
Rules

Payroll payments were generally 
found to have been made in 
accordance with legislation and the 
Council’s Pay Policy, although as 
noted in the Key Points table there 
were some payments made on 
which further clarification needed to 
be obtained.

Reasonable

Payroll data is processed and 
recorded in a timely manner, 
is subject to appropriate 
checks and controls and is 
held securely.

From the sample checks 
undertaken all data appears to 
have been processed promptly and 
subject to appropriate controls. 
Security could be improved by 
greater use of electronic rather than 
paper records. This would also aid 
compliance with the General Data 
Protection Regulations (GDPR). 
Due to the volume of documents 
involved however adoption of such 
a practice would be very time 
consuming but is something 
management may want to consider 
further. It was noted however that 
an alternative (more secure) 
storage location was being 
considered at the end of the year.

Reasonable

Starters and Leavers are 
appropriately authorised, 
Inland Revenue and Pension 
requirements complied with 
and initial / final payments 
calculated correctly.

Due to the nature by which forms 
are usually circulated (i.e. e-mail), 
the signed agreement of the details 
on the leavers’ forms by leaver and 
manager was not always evident. 
Management have previously 
accepted this weakness.
The pension deduction rate for one 
starter was found to have been 
incorrectly set due to the 
application of pay award after the 
starter notification was received but 
before they were first paid, which 
moved them into the next pension 
band. This was notified to the 
Payroll Officer and corrected.

Reasonable

Page  27



18

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

Deductions of Tax, National 
Insurance, Superannuation 
etc. are made in accordance 
with the relevant legislation / 
policies, correctly recorded 
and paid to third parties by 
due dates.

Tax and Insurance tables were 
found to have been correctly set up 
in the payroll system, and 
payments made to 3rd parties on 
time. Only one deduction error was 
identified as noted above. 

Reasonable

All variations to pay are 
supported by appropriately 
authorised documentation, are 
input and calculated correctly 
and payments made on a 
timely basis.

Supporting documentation and 
calculations were available for all 
variations sample checked with all 
payments made correctly. Although 
all payments were authorised, as 
noted above further clarification 
was sought by audit in respect of 
three payments made.
This year’s audit did not cover the 
testing of overtime and travel 
claims. Testing of payments for 
Sick Pay was restricted to 
reconciling numbers on 
departmental returns to payroll 
system reports. No significant 
issues have been identified in these 
areas in recent audits.

Reasonable

Claims are 
individually 
authorised by the 
respective 
managers before 
payment and 
payment rates are 
‘pre-set’ in the 
system so the risk 
of incorrect 
payments in 
relation to the 
hours or miles 
claimed is minimal

Payments are appropriately 
authorised, all relevant 
records and accounts are 
updated to record payments 
made and subsequently 
reconciled.

All payments were made via the 
BACS system on due dates and 
payment totals and control records 
reconciled.
Control sheets are not always 
signed to confirm that BACS Input 
(Payment) Reports have been 
produced and passed to a 
supervisor for checking. This is 
purely an administrative issue 
however as all reports had been 
downloaded and independently 
checked and signed to confirm 
payments were correct.

Reasonable

Page  28



19

Audit Opinion on Governance, Risk and Control Issues

Issue Audit Comment Assurance

Governance As noted above further enquiries were 
made by audit as to how three payroll 
payments made in the year complied with 
the Council’s Pay Policy, as the basis of the 
payments was not immediately evident from 
available information. Satisfactory 
(confidential) explanations were 
subsequently received. No other 
Governance issues were identified.

Reasonable

Risk Management The level of controls and procedures in 
place in the system are effective in 
mitigating any risks generally associated 
with Payroll.

Substantial

Control Processes Control Processes throughout the system 
were generally very good with only a very 
small number of minor issues or errors 
identified during the audit.

Reasonable

Probability of 
Significant Errors, 
Fraud or non-
compliance

Payroll is a complex system accounting for 
a large proportion of the Council’s 
expenditure so any error, particularly in 
relation to the set-up of a payroll record or 
parameter could be significant. However, it 
is considered that the controls in place are 
effective in substantially restricting the 
probability of this happening and identifying 
such cases when they do occur. Concerns 
raised in last year’s audit about the 
compliance of some payments made with 
the Council’s Pay Policy have substantially 
been addressed, although as noted above 
three further payments this year needed to 
be queried but all were satisfactorily 
explained.

Reasonable

Page  29



20

Intentionally Blank

Page  30



21

Appendix D

Internal Audit Report 2018/19 – Main Accounting System

KEY POINTS

Overall Assurance Level* Substantial

Recommendations* 

Priority 1 None

Priority 2 None

MA09 - A policy should be formalised to ensure the regular review and 
updating of Financial Services procedure notes and forms including which 
procedures and forms need to be made available corporately and how these 
are ordered on SharePoint.
(Previously issued recommendation which remains partly outstanding)

Priority 3

MA13 - The ‘Approach to Financial Training Document should be reviewed 
annually. Decisions on and fulfillment of training requested by Budget Holders 
should be appropriately documented and incorporated into this review.
(Previously issued recommendation which remains outstanding)

Other Issues

A ‘Substantial’ assurance has been given to the system overall. A number of system 
areas were given a ‘Reasonable’ rating due to some issues which are identified in the 
report. These were mainly of a minor nature and predominantly related to errors of an 
administrative nature that did not impact on the overall integrity of the information 
provided by and recorded in the Financial Management System.
Due to other pressures on audit time in 2018-19 (see the Internal Audit Annual Report) 
the full range of testing planned in respect of verification of the Bank Reconciliations was 
not undertaken. It is considered that this does not significantly impact on the level of 
assurance given to this area.

Action Plan

This Final Report will be presented to the meeting of the Accounts & Governance 
Committee on 27 June 2019.
The agreed recommendations will be monitored for implementation in accordance with 
the timescales stated.

* See Appendix A for Definitions of Assurance Level and Recommendation Priorities

Page  31



22

Background

The Council utilises the Total Finance (formerly TASK) Financial Management System 
supplied and supported by Total Mobile to run, monitor and control its main financial and 
accounting processes and procedures. The audit of the main accountancy and financial 
processes within this system including the monitoring and control of budgets, amendments to 
budgets, recording of financial transactions and the reconciliation of bank and control 
accounts was undertaken as part of the agreed 2018/19 Audit Programme. 

Audits of specific systems within the Total Finance package i.e. payroll, creditors, sundry 
debtors as well as other ‘feeder’ systems i.e. council tax, business rates and cash receipting 
which result in the majority of transactions within the General Ledger are also undertaken 
and reported on separately.

The system therefore has a high level of materiality in terms of the Council’s final accounts 
and is fundamental in ensuring the complete and accurate recording of all financial 
transactions made by the Council.

Basis of Audit Work

The audit was undertaken in accordance with the principles laid down in the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.

Audit work included:

 establishing the objectives of the Main Accounting System and the management 
criteria for determining whether these objectives are being accomplished

 identifying the risks and controls associated with the system
 undertaking appropriate testing to establish that controls are operating consistently 

and effectively, appropriate records are kept and resources are utilised efficiently.

An assessment was then made of: 

 the extent to which defined system objectives are being met
 the adequacy and effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management and Control 

processes in respect of the system
 the probability of significant errors, fraud and non-compliance

The audit was undertaken by Gary Little, In-House Senior Auditor between April 2018 and 
May 2019 as part of the agreed 2018/19 Audit Plan.

Page  32



23

Audit Opinion on the Achievement of System Objectives

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

The main accounting system 
provides complete and 
accurate data for the 
production and publication of 
the annual accounts and 
financial returns

The Financial Management System 
(FMS) has been set up and 
structured to meet accounting 
requirements and the annual 
accounts and returns were 
prepared in accordance with CIPFA 
requirements. The External Auditor 
reported that the Accounts had 
been produced to a “very high 
standard” and made only a limited 
number of recommendations.

Substantial

The system is operated and 
transactions are undertaken in 
accordance with the Council’s 
Accounting & Audit Rules

Compliance with the Accounts and 
Audit Rules was found to be good. 

Substantial

Satisfactory and up to date 
procedures are held to ensure 
that controls and system 
processes are understood and 
operated on a day to day 
basis.

Comprehensive procedure notes 
exist and whilst a number have 
been recently updated there are still 
a limited number that are out of 
date or different versions exist in 
separate locations. It is therefore 
considered that Recommendation 
MA09 remains outstanding.

Reasonable

The security & integrity of the 
system is maintained. System 
/ software updates are 
undertaken when necessary 
and data is regularly ‘backed-
up’. 

Access to the system is well 
controlled, but the ‘Group 
Permissions’ reporting function is 
still not working correctly. However 
individuals within each Group do 
have the correct permissions 
allocated. Back-ups are regularly 
undertaken. All necessary software 
upgrades had been installed. 

Substantial

Approved Budgets are 
correctly recorded on the 
system. Expenditure and 
income is appropriately 
recorded against each budget 
and this is regularly monitored 
by budget holders and 
management. Variations are 
identified, reported and acted 
on.

Budget Estimate and approval 
procedures were good and all 
budgets had been correctly 
imported into the FMS.
A comprehensive range of budget 
monitoring and reporting controls 
are in place, although the 
‘Budgetary Control Memo’ does not 
appear to have been sent out in 3 
months of the year

Substantial

Reasonable

Page  33



24

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

Variations to budgets 
(supplementary estimates, 
virements etc.) are 
appropriately recorded and 
approved.

Supplementary Estimates were 
generally well controlled and 
documented.
Virements were all appropriately 
approved although two cases were 
identified where the was no 
evidence of the required approval 
on file.

Substantial

Reasonable

Opening Balances are 
correctly brought forward and 
reconciled each year

Balances had been updated and 
reconciled by Financial Services. 
Totals were verified to supporting 
documentation and ledger / trial 
balance reports, although a 
variation of £51,000 between the 
Edit List and Update Report was 
noted which was later corrected. A 
minor variation of 39p was also 
noted between the Usable 
Reserves Schedule and the Rate 
Fund Surplus Balance Sheet total.

Reasonable

Journal transfers are 
appropriately controlled and 
documented

All Journals sampled had been 
correctly approved. Three minor 
documentation errors were noted 
but these did not affect the correct 
processing of the Journal amounts.

Reasonable

A satisfactory coding structure 
exists to allow income and 
expenditure to be correctly 
recorded for budget 
monitoring and final accounts 
purposes. The addition of new 
codes is documented and 
approved.

A comprehensive coding structure 
exists which is linked to a range of 
analysis codes which improve 
reporting. 
Forms are produced to document 
the setting up of new codes 
although 6 of the 17 ‘Cost Centre’ 
forms sampled included at least 
one field which had different set-up 
information to that actually input on 
the FMS. 

Substantial

Reasonable

Data received from feeder 
systems for input into the 
main accounting system is 
appropriately controlled, 
reconciled and authorised.

All data imports and updates are 
appropriately controlled and 
reconciled. A small number of 
transaction / processing errors 
occurred due to software problems 
with the cash receipting system but 
these were identified by the various 
controls in place and corrected.

Reasonable

Page  34



25

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

VAT Returns are accurately 
compiled, authorised and 
submitted to HMRC by due 
dates

Returns were being correctly 
compiled, authorised and submitted 
in accordance with HMRC 
requirements

Substantial

Regular reconciliation of 
Control, Suspense and Bank 
Accounts is undertaken and 
these are reviewed by a 
senior manager.

Control checks / reconciliations are 
regularly and promptly undertaken 
but various issues were noted in 
respect of the reconciliation of the 
Debtors Control A/C throughout the 
year (see Sundry Debtors Report).
Bank Reconciliations were 
undertaken monthly by Financial 
Services but the planned re-
performance for three of these as 
part of audit testing only took place 
in one month due to other 
pressures on audit time (see Audit 
Annual Report)

Reasonable

The Final Accounts are 
prepared in accordance with 
an approved timetable which 
defines employee 
responsibilities, required 
working papers etc.

A timetable was prepared and was 
being updated as tasks were 
completed when audit tests were 
undertaken

Substantial

Page  35



26

Audit Opinion on Governance, Risk and Control Issues

Issue Audit Comment Assurance

Governance The only Governance issues identified were 
those that could arise as a result of 
problems actually occurring as a result of 
the risks identified below.

Substantial

Risk Management The only risks identified were limited and 
minor in nature i.e.

 incorrect processes or controls may be 
undertaken or applied due to out of date 
procedures / forms being held.

 Expenditure / Income may not be 
correctly recorded / reported if codes are 
set up incorrectly.

Reasonable

Control Processes Control processes were generally very good 
with only minor weaknesses identified as 
noted above.

Reasonable

Probability of 
Significant Errors, 
Fraud or non-
compliance

Whilst some minor issues were identified 
during the audit it is considered that the 
given the generally high level of controls in 
place then the probability of any significant 
issue arising is low.

Substantial

Page  36



27

Outstanding Recommendations Previously Agreed By Management

Recommendation MA09 Responsibility: Assistant Director Finance Priority: 3

A policy should be formalised to ensure the regular  review and updating of Financial 
Services procedure notes and forms including which procedures and forms need to be 
made available corporately and how these are ordered on SharePoint

Rationale

Recommendation MA09 was issued as a result of the 2013/14 audit and accepted as 
implemented following a noticeable improvement in the sections own ‘system processes’ 
procedures as part of testing undertaken in the 2014-15 audit.
It was noted however that there was still an issue with some out-dated procedures being 
held on the SharePoint Corporate Centre and this was still the case in 2015-16.
Work undertaken as part of the 2016-17 audit found that an increasing number of 
‘system process’ procedures were in need of review although the majority appeared to 
be satisfactory. Whilst it is noted that some have been updated since the following were 
identified as still requiring attention:

 System Software Updates – e.g reference is still made to Total running on Citrix 
servers

 Approach To Financial Training – see also Recommendation MA13
 Estimates
 Budget Import & Opening Balance Procedures
 New Cost Centre Procedures – include an outdated form

Management Response

It is the intention to review all procedures and forms for both users and Financial Service 
staff in the lead up to procuring and implementation of a new financial management 
system to find a more effective way of working.

Accepted Yes To Be Implemented By 31/12/2019

Page  37



28

Recommendation MA13 Responsibility: Assistant Director Finance Priority: 3

The ‘Approach to Financial Training Document should be reviewed annually. Decisions 
on and fulfillment of training requested by Budget Holders should be appropriately 
documented and incorporated into this review.

Rationale

Recommendation MA08 issued following the 2012-13 audit recommended that the 
‘Approach to Financial Training’ document produced in 2007 was “revised and updated 
to incorporate current procedures and guidelines”. This was done in October 2013 but 
despite the cover stating that reviews of the document are due annually there is no 
evidence of this being done since. Recommendation MA13 was therefore issued 
following the 2015-16 audit.
The existing document states “The Financial Management Development and 
Improvement Group (FMDIG) will be responsible for delivering training under this 
approach.  The approach will be reviewed annually at the first meeting of FMDIG in the 
calendar year.” It also states that “An annual survey will be undertaken of financial 
training need: this will inform the forthcoming year’s training plan.”

FMDIG meetings no longer take place (now replaced with ‘Team’ meetings) and no 
survey has been undertaken since March 2018.

It was noted that a number of training sessions were held in 2018-19 (possibly more 
than in recent years) but it unclear what approach will be taken in 2019-20 unless the 
‘Approach to Financial Training’ document is updated or the policy is otherwise 
documented. Assessing need will also be compromised if no Survey is undertaken.

It is evident that training is being provided but it is still considered that the ongoing 
approach and provision needs to be documented and regularly reviewed.

It was also noted that the ‘Financial Competencies’ initiative that was proposed for 2014-
15 but was delayed due to Job Evaluation has still not been progressed. A decision 
therefore needs to be taken as to whether this is still considered worthy of progression 
and the most effective way of achieving this is probably by a proper review of training 
needs.

Management Response

As for MA09 above, and also as a new main budget control system evolves in the 
financial year 2019/20 the training needs of users will be highlighted. This should also be 
evident when the Competency Framework is applied following the work of the Values 
workshop group.

Accepted Yes To Be Implemented By 31/12/2019

Page  38



29

Appendix E

Internal Audit Report 2018/19 – Income Collection

KEY POINTS

Overall Assurance Level* Reasonable

Recommendations* 

Priority 1 None

Priority 2 None

Priority 3 None

Other Issues

Audit Reports for the past four years have outlined the ongoing audit ‘consultancy’ work in 
relation to the Income Collection system. This is due to the fact that the PARIS software 
which is used to collect and record income received by the Council has needed to be 
regularly upgraded, primarily to meet increasing industry security requirements and provide 
additional functionality but also to resolve some of the software issues that became evident 
following the various upgrades which took place.
Consultancy work in 2018-19 was concerned primarily with preparations for replacing the 
PARIS software which is due to take place in September 2019 (see the Background section 
of this report).
Some minor procedural issues identified during this year’s audit will be addressed as part of 
the implementation of the new software. The opportunity to make the Council almost fully 
compliant with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards (PCI-DSS) was put 
forward as part of the arrangements to replace the cash receipting system. However, this 
would have required the purchase of an additional module which was not part of the original 
agreement to replace the PARIS software on a ‘like for like’ basis. The proposal was 
considered but it was concluded that further work was required in order to prepare a suitable 
business case to obtain the funding for this additional functionality and the time taken to do 
this may have impacted on the key aim of having the new Income Collection system in place 
before the PARIS contract ended. Whilst this issue therefore needs to be addressed in 2019-
20 it has not been included as a recommendation in this report until a business case is 
prepared to demonstrate this is a viable option. Until this is done however, the risk of non 
PCI-DSS compliance charges or possible fines remains. 

Action Plan

This Final Report will be presented to the meeting of the Accounts & Governance Committee 
on 27 June 2019.

* See Appendix A for Definitions of Assurance Level and Recommendation Priorities

Page  39



30

Background

The majority of income received by the Council is recorded via the PARIS Cash Receipting 
system. This includes payments made via ‘counter receipting’ at the Town Hall and Mansion 
House, over the internet and by telephone as well as recording payments made via the post 
and direct into the Council’s bank accounts. Some income is also banked directly e.g. car 
parking income (by Carlisle City Council which currently provides parking services for the 
Council) and income taken by the Alston Local Links Centre.

The system recorded around 64,000 transactions totalling around £19 million in 2018-19 
although approximately £14.5 million (37,000 transactions) of this was paid directly into the 
Council’s Bank Account or via AllPay / Giro. The system therefore has a high level of 
materiality in terms of the Council’s final accounts.

In June 2018 the Council was informed that the PARIS system had been sold by Northgate 
to Civica and whilst it was initially stated that the PARIS software would be continue to be 
supported by Civica in July the Council was informed that PARIS would not be supported 
once the existing contract ended in September 2019. An offer was made to replace the 
PARIS software on a “like for like” basis with the equivalent modules in CivicaPay which was 
Civica’s existing income collection system and work is currently ongoing to ensure the new 
system is ready to ‘go live’ by September 2019.

The Civica system is a “fully hosted” solution which means that the payment software is held, 
and card authorisations are processed through Civica’s Data Centres. This significantly 
reduces the Council’s PCI-DSS requirements as payments are not actually being processed 
on its server network. The ‘hosted service’ does not however address the PCI-DSS 
requirements in respect of customers providing card details to Council staff over the 
telephone. A module to resolve this was offered, but at extra cost and it was subsequently 
decided not to progress with this as part of the initial implementation. Further details are 
provided in the ‘Consultancy Audits’ section of the Internal Audit Annual Report.

Page  40



31

Basis of Audit Work

The audit was undertaken in accordance with the principles laid down in the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.

Audit work included:

 establishing the objectives of the Income Collection System and the management 
criteria for determining whether these objectives are being accomplished

 identifying the risks and controls associated with the system
 undertaking appropriate testing to establish that controls are operating consistently and 

effectively, appropriate records are kept and resources are utilised efficiently.

An assessment was then made of: 

 the extent to which defined system objectives are being met
 the adequacy and effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management and Control 

processes in respect of the system
 the probability of significant errors, fraud and non-compliance

Assistance was also provided to Contact Centre, Revenues, Financial Services and IT staff 
in addressing various issues in connection with the PARIS system. This was a mix of both 
audit and non-audit work. Non audit advice and support was provided on the basis of 
previous knowledge obtained by the Senior Auditor due to acting as Project Manager for the 
system in the past. Some audit work was also undertaken in investigating, verifying and 
ensuring the correction of some transaction errors and advising on the restoration of some 
control processes that arose following the upgrade to PARIS in March 2018.

Work was also undertaken during the year in respect of arrangements for the replacement of 
the income collection software. The Senior Auditor has been allocated the role of Joint 
Project Manager along with the Systems & Quality Manager so this will continue into 2019-
20. Approval for this was given by Accounts & Governance when they considered the Annual 
Audit Plan for 2019-20 on 21st February 2019. 

Information obtained from auditor, consultancy and project manager roles has informed the 
findings and outcomes of this report.

The audit was undertaken by Gary Little, Senior Auditor (In-house) between April 2018 and 
May 2019 as part of the agreed 2018/19 Audit Plan.

Page  41



32

Audit Opinion on the Achievement of System Objectives

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

Duties and responsibilities in 
respect of Income Collection / 
Cashiering and reconciliation 
to bank records are clearly 
defined and supported by 
appropriate procedure notes

Procedures are generally working 
well and provide a satisfactory level 
of control. Comprehensive system 
documentation has been provided 
by the software supplier but actual 
procedure notes would probably 
benefit from review and 
consolidation especially given the 
changes that have been made to 
the system in recent years. Given 
the impending change of software 
however, it would seem reasonable 
to postpone this until the new 
system is in place.
PCI-DSS requirements also require 
some additional procedures and 
notifications to be put in place and 
work in connection with this is being 
progressed along with the 
Information Governance Manager

Reasonable

Adequate records are kept of 
all income received and 
processed from all sources.

Satisfactory records are kept of 
income received and processed 
and generally the PARIS system 
provides a comprehensive set of 
reporting tools to document and 
control this. The last software 
upgrade resulted in the loss of 
some report search criteria but 
these have now been restored. 
Some transaction data is now no 
longer recorded on receipts but 
alternative reporting and 
reconciliation methods have been 
introduced to address this. Some 
instances of transactions being 
‘lost’ due to being “rolled-back” by 
the software due to the card 
authorisation process not 
completing correctly were identified 
but procedures are now in place to 
identify these. The new software is 
expected to resolve these issues. 

Reasonable

Page  42



33

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

Income is correctly coded and 
promptly receipted and 
banked.

Sample testing showed that coding 
of income was good with only one 
coding error in respect of car 
parking income being identified. On 
the whole income is promptly 
receipted and banked, although 
some delays in the banking of 
income by Alston Local Links were 
noted.
Some ledger narratives were found 
to be missing or ‘non-specific’ due 
to issues with how this information 
was recorded in the PARIS 
receipting screens. Changes may 
also be needed in this respect due 
to the new General Data Protection 
Regulations. These issues will be 
addressed as part of the set-up of 
the new system

Reasonable

All income received is 
reconciled on a daily basis 
and suspense accounts 
regularly reviewed and 
cleared.

Income is reconciled daily and 
these totals are used as part of the 
bank reconciliation process.
Suspense transactions are being 
regularly cleared.
Any discrepancies arising from the 
payment / reporting errors noted 
above were identified which 
confirms the effectiveness of the 
control procedures in this area 

Substantial

Income is collected, held and 
transported securely and 
satisfactory insurance cover is 
held.

Security of income collected is 
generally good. Issues reported in 
previous years with isolated 
instances of breaches of insurance 
and money laundering limits have 
been addressed.
PCI-DSS requirements remain an 
issue in this respect however. 
Whilst the ‘hosted’ nature of the 
new software means the Council no 
longer needs to demonstrate 
compliance with a substantial 
number of the requirements, 
continuing to take card details 
verbally over the telephone is an 
ongoing risk.

Reasonable

Page  43



34

Audit Opinion on Governance, Risk and Control Issues

Issue Audit Comment Assurance

Governance Some previous PARIS upgrades have 
resulted in disruption to services and some 
transaction errors. Customers have to be 
contacted about these and other payment 
problems that happen occasionally. If this 
happens too frequently then the Council’s 
reputation and customer goodwill is at risk. 
The new software should address the 
majority of these issues.
The Council is currently not fully compliant 
with all PCI-DSS requirements and if any 
card data was found to be compromised 
because of this then the Council’s 
reputation would be severely damaged.

Reasonable

Risk Management A very small number of card payments still 
fail and if the customer cannot be identified 
(mainly an issue at the Tourist Information 
Centre) then a small financial loss may be 
incurred.
The Council’s current PCI-DSS status is a 
key risk which may result in ‘non-
compliance’ charges being levied. The 
switch to a ‘Hosted Service’ in September 
will reduce this risk but until the situation 
with card payments taken over the phone is 
addressed then a significant risk remains in 
this area and if a data compromise did 
occur, large fines would be imposed. With 
the move of many businesses to hosted 
services and improvements in IT networks 
generally, the card providers are moving 
their focus to remaining risk areas with card 
payments taken over the phone by 
employees being high on the list. 
Supplementary guidance has already been 
issued in November 2018 about the need to 
take extra precautions in this area and it is 
considered to be only a matter of time until 
stricter regulations come into force. There 
are currently a number of processes in 
place which mitigate these risks but the 
Council may be forced to take further action 
if compliance standards change.

Reasonable

Page  44



35

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

Control Processes Control processes are generally satisfactory 
and as noted above appear to be working 
well in identifying any errors which occur as 
well as providing financial control 
assurance.
The move to a ‘Hosted Service’ in 
September as part of the new software 
implementation will increase the level of the 
Council’s compliance with PCI-DSS 
requirements and will significantly add to 
the assurance that can be given in respect 
of the security of the IT Network and the 
integrity of card payments generally. Card 
payments taken by telephone remains a 
weakness however and control processes 
in this respect will be closely monitored until 
a more satisfactory solution is implemented. 
Until this is achieved the extent of the 
assurance that can be given in this area is 
reduced.
There are areas of the current system 
where the possibility of improved efficiency 
and recording of information exists. These 
do not relate to any notable control 
weaknesses and it is anticipated that some 
of these issues will be resolved when the 
new system is in place.

Reasonable

Probability of 
Significant Errors, 
Fraud or non-
compliance

As noted above some errors do occur due 
to system issues but existing controls have 
proved to be effective in detecting and 
correcting these.
Until full PCI-DSS compliance is achieved, 
fraud in this area needs to be considered. 
However the current software is Payment 
Application Data Security Standard (PAD-
SS) compliant and the IT Network currently 
has a ‘Pass’ Status in respect of 
vulnerability scanning. As noted above the 
move to a ‘Hosted Service’ will improve the 
level of assurance further but the risk of a 
fraud arising from cardholder data provided 
over the phone will remain until this issue is 
fully addressed.
The overall probability of significant error or 
fraud however is still considered to be low.

Reasonable

Page  45



36

Intentionally Blank

Page  46



37

Appendix F

Internal Audit Report 2018-19 – Sundry Debtors System

KEY POINTS

Overall Assurance Level* Reasonable Assurance

Recommendations* 

Priority 1 None

Priority 2 SD14 – Management continue to approve and progress the ongoing review of the 
ways in which the operation of the Sundry Debtors system could be improved.
(Partly Outstanding Recommendation from previous year)

Priority 3 SD16 - The compilation of the Deleted Invoices spreadsheet should be 
considered and a decision made as to whether procedures should be put in place 
to ensure that accuracy and completeness is improved or whether use of the 
spreadsheet should be discontinued.

Other Issues

The Sundry Debtors System has been subject to considerable change in the past three 
years. This has been due to various issues identified as the result of previous audit work and 
the need to make the system more efficient by removing duplication of work and introduce 
new functionality provided by the software supplier.
As noted in last year’s report, examining the various options for change and deciding on the 
best way forward for a system which has input from multiple sections across the Council is a 
time consuming and at times complicated process when trying to ensure the needs of 
individual sections are dealt with in the most cost effective and efficient way.
This year’s audit has noted improvements in some areas which means that greater 
assurance can be given that invoices are being raised correctly and on time but it is 
considered that too many errors are still being made in some areas which is resulting in an 
unnecessary amount of time having to be spent correcting these and ensuring correct 
charges are subsequently made. The key point however is that these errors are now usually 
being identified whereas previously this was not always the case.
It is evident that work is still required to improve the system and a number of possible options 
have been identified but given the new management structure introduced in the Council in 
February 2019 and the proposed reallocation of responsibilities within the Revenues & 
Benefits Section itself, it would seem reasonable to allow any decisions with regard to 
changes in procedure to be taken by those managers who have either recently or are about 
to become responsible for the various functions that form the Sundry Debtors system and 
consequently this work will be continued in 2019-20. 

Page  47



38Page  48



39

Action Plan

This Final Report will be presented to the meeting of the Accounts & Governance 
Committee on 27 June 2019.
The agreed recommendations will be monitored for implementation in accordance with 
the timescales stated.

* See Appendix A for Definitions of Assurance Level and Recommendation Priorities

Page  49



40

Background

Sundry Debtor Accounts are raised, monitored and controlled via various Debtors modules 
within the Council’s Financial Management System (FMS). Previously all invoices were 
raised in the Revenues Section on receipt of ‘Debtor Notification Forms’. Following changes 
introduced in December 2015, Sundry Debtor invoices are now raised / input predominantly 
by the section / budget holder responsible for the service for which the invoice is being 
raised. In some cases however, invoices are imported on a ‘batch’ basis via a spreadsheet 
e.g. Building Control Fees or in the case of Rents via the ‘Recurring Invoices’ module. These 
options are still controlled by the Revenues Recovery & Enforcement Section.

Approximately 1,200 invoices and credit notes are raised per annum with a value of around 
£2.9 million. During 2011-12 a new Revenues system was introduced by the Council and 
subsequently all debtor invoices relating to overpayment of housing benefit (OPHB) were 
raised via this system rather than the FMS, although unpaid OPHB accounts that were 
originally raised via the FMS were still included as part of this system. In 2018-19 however 
the Revenues system was again replaced and all outstanding OPHB balances in the FMS 
were transferred to the new system.

The Debtors system therefore has a high level of materiality in terms of the Council’s final 
accounts and is fundamental to ensuring sums due to the Council are recorded and 
recovered.

Audit consultancy work has also been undertaken on the Sundry Debtors system since 2015-
16 and has primarily concentrated on addressing previously reported problems in respect of 
Periodic Income and addressing the weakening of system controls due to issues arising after 
the change in debtor account input procedures in December 2015. 

Recommendation SD14 was issued as part of last year’s audit which proposed that a 
fundamental review of the way in which the function is provided and controlled took place as 
a result of ongoing problems and the return of some others which it was thought had been 
addressed. Whilst some work in respect of the recommendation did take place which has 
resulted in the improvement noted in this report the process was not fully completed for the 
reasons noted in the ‘Key Points’ section of the report above and it is consequently proposed 
that this work is carried forward into 2019-20.

Page  50



41

Basis of Audit Work

The audit was undertaken in accordance with the principles laid down in the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.

Audit work included:

 establishing the objectives of the Debtors System and the management criteria for 
determining whether these objectives are being accomplished

 identifying the risks and controls associated with the system
 undertaking appropriate testing to establish that controls are operating consistently and 

effectively, appropriate records are kept and resources are utilised efficiently.

An assessment was then made of: 

 the extent to which defined system objectives are being met
 the adequacy and effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management and Control 

processes in respect of the system
 the probability of significant errors, fraud and non-compliance

The audit was undertaken by Gary Little, In House Senior Auditor, between June 2018 and 
May 2019 as part of the agreed 2018-19 Internal Audit Plan. 

Page  51



42

Audit Opinion on the Achievement of System Objectives

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

Appropriate 
documentation is 
provided to support the 
raising of all debtors 
accounts.

There was a fundamental change in 
procedures in December 2015 when 
sections were required to input their own 
invoices rather than send the relevant 
documentation to the Recovery Section for 
input. Although supporting documentation 
is therefore not always available to the 
extent it once was, the basic process is 
considered satisfactory. There are still 
some associated procedures that need to 
be clarified and agreed e.g. updating of the 
Periodic Income Register / Recurring 
Invoices module of the FMS, as well as 
ensuring that these accounts are raised 
and authorised promptly and correctly in 
accordance with defined charging criteria. 
Some invoices were found to have been 
charged for part months which in some 
cases has caused confusion and incorrect 
invoices. Previously all invoices were 
raised for complete months from the start 
of the lease.

An issue was noted that reports available 
from the FMS which should show the 
Debtors system menu permissions 
allocated to respective ‘Groups’ e.g. ‘Input’, 
‘Authorising’, ‘Admin.’ etc. no longer 
display these permissions correctly 
although reports for individuals allocated to 
the respective Groups do. A further 
problem was that for some authorising 
officers only their initials and not their name 
is displayed when running system 
enquiries. Both matters have been referred 
to the software supplier but have not yet 
been resolved.

It was also noted that the Revenue Section 
spreadsheet which records the reasons for 
Deleted / Missing invoice numbers was 
incomplete with a number of missing 
invoice numbers and replacement invoice 
details not being recorded. In some cases 
the reason for the deletion was not 
recorded, or was ‘generic’ or incorrect e.g. 
deleted invoices recorded as ‘Entered in 
Error’ or ‘Raised by Mistake’ were found to 
have been re-raised to different suppliers 
for different amounts, periods, VAT 
categories..

Reasonable - there is 
satisfactory evidence to 
support most of the 
charges but there are 
still a number of control 
areas which require 
improvement to ensure 
that the information 
used to produce 
invoices is as accurate 
as possible so that the 
number of errors can be 
reduced even further 
and that processes are 
clarified.

Partial – the 
spreadsheet was found 
to be incomplete and 
provide limited 
assurance that deleted 
invoices have 
subsequently been 
raised correctly (where 
appropriate). See 
Recommendation SD16

Page  52



43

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

Debtor Accounts are 
raised promptly and 
accurately and provide 
adequate details of the 
charge being made.

Whilst the majority of invoices are raised 
promptly and accurately, it is also evident 
there are still a number of cases where 
incorrect invoices have been sent out.

A large proportion of the Credit Notes / 
Refunds issued during the year were noted 
to have been due to invoices being raised 
to the incorrect debtor, with the wrong VAT 
category or because payment had already 
been received. Whilst these errors had 
been identified and corrected (which was 
not always the case previously) it is still 
clear that controls are not operating as 
effectively as they should be (to prevent 
the error occurring in the first place) and an 
unnecessary amount of time is 
consequently being spent in correcting 
these. Delays were also noted in the 
processing of some transactions.

A full review of the Periodic Income 
Register took place in 2016-17. This 
identified a number of errors with regard to 
VAT classifications and the application of 
RPI increases and the PI Register was 
updated accordingly. Last year’s audit 
noted that not all the errors identified had 
been corrected when subsequent invoices 
were raised and some incorrect charges 
had been made. This year only one coding 
and one VAT error were identified. Whilst 
this is obviously a marked improvement it 
was still disappointing to note that 
previously identified errors in the Recurring 
Invoice set-up had still not been corrected.

Last year’s audit identified a small number 
of invoices which had been input but not 
authorised and were therefore still held in 
the Invoicing module. Testing this year 
found that although a small number of 
delays in authorisation were evident, most 
invoices were being authorised and sent 
out promptly

Reasonable – although 
greater assurance can 
now be given that 
incorrectly raised 
invoices are not going 
undetected, the number 
of errors still remains 
higher than would 
normally be expected 
despite the improvement 
noted this year. The 
assurance rating given 
is therefore at the lower 
end of the scale and 
further work in improving 
the overall accuracy of 
invoices raised is 
required particularly in 
respect of using correct 
debtor details and VAT 
categories and ensuring 
all credits and refunds 
are processed promptly 
(see below).

Page  53



44

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

All payments received 
are appropriately 
recorded and accounts 
updated and reconciled.

Generally payments received were found 
to have been promptly and correctly 
allocated to accounts. There are a number 
of cases however where payments are 
made in advance of the account being 
raised. This usually means that the account 
is still raised but not sent out as it has 
already been paid and a re-allocation 
needs to be done.

Control A/C reconciliations during the year 
recorded variations in most months due to 
various processing and recording issues or 
incomplete VAT reports being used. It was 
also a concern that a variation of £25 first 
noted on the December 2017 reconciliation 
that was claimed to relate to a discrepancy 
that had existed on an account since 2011 
still resulted in a variation in control totals 
for the first 3 months of 2018-19 and still 
results in a variation on the ‘cumulative 
balance to date’ even though monthly 
totals now agree.

Reasonable – timely 
and accurate 
reconciliation of the 
control account remains 
a concern however and 
this has been reported 
as a problem for a 
number of years. No 
further recommendation 
has been made however 
because staff are aware 
of the correct 
procedures and these 
are appropriately 
documented but is 
something to be 
considered as part of 
SD14.

Credits and Refunds to 
accounts are properly 
authorised and promptly 
actioned.

Credit Note procedures were also changed 
in December 2015 and signed credit note 
request forms are no longer submitted but 
are raised on the basis of telephone calls 
or e-mails which consequently result in a 
limited audit trail when attempting to verify 
the validity of the transaction, although this 
was usually evident to some extent from 
the details on the original invoice, the 
description on the Credit Note and the 
‘Authorising Officer’ initials on the FMS 
record of the Credit Note.  

It was noted that many of the Credit Notes 
raised were to cancel invoices that had 
been sent to the wrong debtor, included 
incorrect VAT categories or because the 
invoice had previously been paid. VAT 
issues were also noted as being 
responsible for a number of credit notes 
raised in 2017-18. Such issues should be 
mainly avoidable if accurate invoicing 
information is provided and controls are 
being operated effectively.

Partial – although 
evidence to support the 
raising of the credit note 
is limited in some cases 
and some processing 
delays were noted the 
main reason for the 
assurance level given is 
the number of the Credit 
Notes and Refunds that 
have to be raised 
because errors have 
been made on the 
original invoice. Whilst 
this could be considered 
to relate more to the 
raising of the invoice 
rather than the Credit 
Note the weakness has 
been highlighted under 
this objective as credit 
notes should not make 
up almost 8% of the 
total invoices raised if 
controls were working 
effectively.

Page  54



45

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

Two Credit Notes were also issued when 
the ‘supporting’ e-mail requested that the 
invoices be “written-off”. From the 
supporting documentation available it 
would appear that a budget holder decision 
was made in both cases that the 
outstanding amount should not be pursued 
but whether this was because the charge 
was now considered ‘excessive’ and 
should be credited or was due but 
irrecoverable (i.e. a write off) was unclear.

Recovery Action is 
taken as per defined 
procedures and 
performance monitored.

Generally recovery letters are  being sent 
out regularly and Notes fields updated with 
comments as appropriate but some cases 
were identified where reminders were 
delayed or recovery action had apparently 
stopped but there were no Notes to explain 
why this was the case or what action was 
actually being taken to recover the debt.

Two cases were also identified were 
recovery action was being delayed by 
information not being provided by other 
sections within the Council. In one case 
information had been repeatedly requested 
over 6 months without success. 

Reasonable – the 
delays in some sections 
providing information to 
enable recovery of the 
debt is a concern as is 
the apparent lack of 
action on some invoices. 
Generally action is being 
taken however, so no 
further recommendation 
has been issued.

Accounts are only 
‘written-off’ after 
appropriate recovery 
action and this has been 
authorised as per 
Accounting Rules. 
Agreed ‘write-offs’ are 
processed promptly to 
ensure an accurate and 
up to date record of the 
account is kept.

Previous audit reports have reported 
various issues with the processing of write-
offs, particularly delays in processing 
these. A new procedure was consequently 
introduced to address this and write-offs 
made during the year appear to have been 
undertaken in a more timely manner. 
However supporting records now only 
show when the write-off was approved and 
processed and not when it was actually 
identified that the invoice should be written-
off.

No write-offs were processed after the 4th 
October 2018 and the new procedure 
means that it was not possible for audit to 
identify whether any further write-offs 
should have been made in the second half 
of the year or whether recovery action was 
continuing in all cases where write-off 
could be considered.

Reasonable – whilst the 
write-offs recorded 
during the year were 
processed promptly, the 
level of assurance is 
affected to a degree by 
the fact that it cannot be 
confirmed from the new 
procedure that all 
invoices that may be 
due to be considered for 
write-off have been.  

Page  55



46

Audit Opinion on Governance, Risk and Control Issues

Issue Audit Comment Assurance

Governance The number of errors and incorrect invoices 
identified can affect customer confidence in 
the Council’s charging abilities. The vast 
majority of invoices are raised correctly 
however.

Reasonable

Risk Management Delays in the payment of rent for some 
commercial properties were noted, along 
with some agreements for deferred 
payments and a write-off due to a company 
going into liquidation. Financial difficulties 
being incurred by commercial tenants could 
result in loss of income to the Council and 
empty properties. 

Reasonable

Control Processes There was evidence of improvements 
during the year, but the number of errors 
identified indicates that further work is still 
required to further strengthen some controls 
and procedures to ensure that all invoices 
are raised in an accurate and timely 
manner.

Reasonable

Probability of 
Significant Errors, 
Fraud or non-
compliance

Concerns have been expressed in recent 
audit reports about the level of possible 
losses to the Council due to the number of 
errors identified in Periodic Income records 
and how due to the recurring nature of 
these invoices any errors are multiplied 
each time the account is raised as long as it 
remains unidentified. This issue now seems 
to have substantially been addressed 
although two errors were still identified. The 
main concern is now the number of invoices 
that were originally raised to the wrong 
debtor or with the wrong VAT category. 
Whilst the majority of these had been 
identified and corrected prior to audit testing 
taking place it indicates that controls are not 
always consistently applied and leads to an 
inefficient use of resources due the time 
taken to correct these errors.

Partial

Page  56



47

Recommendations for Management Action

Recommendation SD16 Responsibility: Head of Revenues & Benefits Priority: 3

The compilation of the Deleted Invoices spreadsheet should be considered and a 
decision made as to whether procedures should be put in place to ensure that accuracy 
and completeness is improved or whether use of the spreadsheet should be 
discontinued. 

Rationale

Recommendation SD07 issued following the 2011/12 audit proposed that a record be 
kept of all ‘Deleted’ or ‘Missing’ invoice numbers so that it could be ensured that all 
invoice numbers were accounted for, that invoices were not being deleted or cancelled 
without appropriate authorisation and then any invoices deleted due to a input mistake 
were replaced with a correctly prepared invoice.

Compilation of the spreadsheet also allowed an assessment / review to be easily 
undertaken of performance and accuracy in inputting invoices and identify any trends or 
recurring reasons for errors.

Audit work undertaken over the past two years has noted that the spreadsheet is 
becoming increasingly incomplete and inaccurate and tends to record generic reasons 
for the invoice being deleted e.g. ‘Input in Error’ rather than the specific reason for the 
invoice being deleted e.g. ‘wrong value entered’, ‘wrong VAT category used’, ‘charge no 
longer due because ….’.

Whilst it is acknowledged that with Sections now inputting their own invoices the correct 
reason for the invoice being deleted may not be known by those compiling the 
spreadsheet it does not explain why a third of the invoices that were actually deleted 
were not recorded in the spreadsheet and why the replacement invoice number for 26 
previously deleted invoices were also not recorded as required.

Consequently it is considered that the spreadsheet does not currently serve the purpose 
for which it is kept and it should be decided whether it is still considered to be a useful 
management control and procedures are put in place to ensure that the completeness 
and accuracy of it is improved or whether its use is discontinued.

Management Response

The use of the spreadsheet will be reviewed as part of the transfer of the Sundry 
Debtors work to the Benefits and Systems team.

Accepted Yes To Be Implemented By 30 September 2019

Page  57



48

Recommendations Previously Notified to Management That Are Still Outstanding or 
Partly Outstanding

Recommendation SD14 Responsibility: Various (See Rationale) Priority: 2

Management approve a full review of ways in which the operation of the Sundry Debtors 
System could be improved, including consideration of the re-allocation of responsibilities 
and alternative charging and payment methods as outlined in the Internal Audit 
Consultancy Report submitted to Management Team on 12 June 2018 and Accounts 
and Governance Committee on 28 June 2018.

Rationale

 Various issues and problems have been identified with the Debtors System in recent 
years. Considerable time has been spent trying to address these problems but as 
evidenced in this report errors and problems continue to occur although there has been 
a notable improvement since last year’s audit as some of the work undertaken in 
response to this recommendation when it was issued following last year’s audit has now 
taken place. It is evident however that further work is required before the 
recommendation can be considered to be fully implemented. 
As noted last year, part of the problem is that key processes within the system are 
undertaken in different sections / departments.  Each section seems to consider that 
they are only responsible for their own part of the system and there is no one manager 
or section that is responsible for ensuring system processes as a whole are properly 
controlled and monitored.  This particularly applies to Periodic Income/Recurring 
Invoices i.e. property and land rents and licences.  It is also evident that, as processes 
have been devolved to sections/budget holders, there have been changes made to 
established practices which have complicated the invoice raising process which may 
lead to errors or confusion in the future.  It is also evident that some staff do not fully 
understand the financial procedures or requirements relating to various aspects of the 
system, which has led to errors and incorrect charges being made particularly in respect 
of VAT.  Problems have been compounded by key staff retiring, or leaving the Council, 
and a Council restructure which has changed some areas of responsibility.
The recent restructure nevertheless provides an opportunity to review the allocation of 
responsibilities with regard to the Debtors System and ensure that those now 
responsible for the various aspects of the system can be involved in how it should 
operate in the future. This will require careful consideration of the pros & cons of making 
any such changes and how these could be incorporated into existing workloads.  The 
aim of the process would be to ensure that overall responsibility for the Debtors System 
was determined and regular reviews and monitoring arrangements put in place to ensure 
changes and updates to charges are promptly and correctly recorded and applied, the 
correct VAT category allocated, and adjustments to invoices and accounts either via 
Credit Note, Refund or Write-Off are promptly actioned. Particular attention should also 
be given to responsibilities for the reconciliation and checking of the Sundry Debtors 
Control Account.
It is also considered that options for alternative charging and payment methods e.g. 
Direct Debit and PayPal should be incorporated into the review.

Page  58



49

Recommendation SD14 Responsibility: Various (See Rationale) Priority: 2

The new Income Collection system (CivicaPay) which is due to ‘go live’ in September 
offers various options and functionality in this respect and in terms of ‘customer self-
service’ which staff were keen to pursue. Senior Management however wanted this 
functionality restricted and were also not prepared to commit to requesting the funding to 
implement a ‘recurring card payments’ module when this was put forward as an option in 
March 2018, on the basis that this would involve setting up ‘customer accounts’ in 
CivicaPay, whereas the Council’s current plan is to have “one view of the customer” as 
part of the CRM software implementation which is also ongoing.
Despite this decision, on the basis of the audit overview of the systems concerned, it is 
still considered that there are a number of reasons why the new income system would 
provide a more effective solution to the problems currently being experienced with the 
raising and payment of Sundry Debtor invoices than the CRM could, especially as the 
required functionality is already available with the Civica software, but this would have to 
be developed within the CRM along with various integrations to the Civica payment and 
reporting modules and to the FMS for accounting purposes. If the Council’s policy 
remains as outlined above, alternative options will consequently have to be considered 
to address some of the remaining inefficiencies in the Sundry Debtors system.

Management Response

The transfer of the Sundry Debtors work to the Benefits and Systems team will provide an 
opportunity to review of all aspects of the work and in particular the areas highlighted in 
the report.

Accepted Yes To Be Implemented By 31 October 2019

Page  59



50

Appendix G

Internal Audit Report 2018/19 – Treasury Management

KEY POINTS

Overall Assurance Level* Reasonable

Recommendations* 

Priority 1 None

Priority 2 None 

Priority 3 TM15 - Reconciliation and reporting processes currently in place should be 
reviewed and consideration given to whether there needs to be a further level 
of reconciliation undertaken to clearly identify the variances which currently 
exist between the various records held and ‘Fund Totals’ reported by each 
source.
(Partly Outstanding Recommendation from previous year)

Other Issues

Audit testing undertaken during the year identified very few issues or errors of note. 
Reference is made to these in the report below. Generally control procedures were very 
good and no other recommendations are considered necessary. 

Action Plan

This Final Report will be presented to the meeting of the Accounts & Governance 
Committee on 27 June 2019.
The agreed recommendations will be monitored for implementation in accordance with 
the timescales stated.

* See Appendix A for Definitions of Assurance Level and Recommendation Priorities

Page  60



51

Background

Treasury Management involves the management of the Council’s cash flows and its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions. Investment turnover is approximately £135 
million per annum. From 1st April 2007 the Council has managed all funds (which at 31st 
March 2019 totalled approximately £16.34 million) in-house.

The system therefore has a high level of materiality in terms of the Council’s final accounts 
due to the value of investments made and the current fund balance. The banking crisis of a 
few years ago (the effects of which a still being felt) and the subsequent regulatory changes 
made fully illustrated the reputational and financial damage that could be incurred by 
Council’s if a sound Treasury Management Policy is not in place.

Basis of Audit Work

The audit was undertaken in accordance with the principles laid down in the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.

Audit work included:

 establishing the objectives of the Treasury Management function and the management 
criteria for determining whether these objectives are being accomplished

 identifying the risks and controls associated with the system
 undertaking appropriate testing to establish that controls are operating consistently and 

effectively, appropriate records are kept and resources are utilised efficiently.

An assessment was then made of: 

 the extent to which defined system objectives are being met
 the adequacy and effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management and Control 

processes in respect of the system
 the probability of significant errors, fraud and non-compliance

The audit was undertaken between April 2018 and May 2019 as part of the agreed 2018-19 
Audit Plan by Gary Little, Senior Auditor (In-House Service).

Page  61



52

Audit Opinion on the Achievement of System Objectives

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

The Council’s Investment 
Policy & Strategy is regularly 
reviewed and approved and 
complies with CIPFA’s Code 
of Practice on Treasury 
Management and advice from 
the Council’s Treasury 
Management advisors.

Policy and Strategy documents are 
subject to regular review and comply with 
best practice. The Strategy is approved 
by full Council twice a year.
Treasury Management Group meetings 
and meetings with the Council’s Treasury 
Management advisors (Arlingclose) are 
held throughout the year.
Detailed procedure notes are held which 
support the policy on an operational 
level.

Substantial

Investments are made only in 
accordance with approved 
Policy

All investments sample checked (26 in 
total) were made in accordance with 
defined policies although three 
supporting documents were found to be 
missing. However due to the range of 
documentation to support each Deal, this 
did not prevent verification of the 
respective transactions.

Reasonable

Appropriate documentary 
evidence is kept to support all 
investments / fund transfers.

The level of documentation and standard 
of records held to support transactions 
was generally good. Although as noted 
above a small number of cases were 
identified were this was incomplete. A 
process was started towards the end of 
the year to try and consolidate the 
number of existing manual records and 
store these electronically. Consideration 
was also being given to discontinue 
some records which were considered to 
be duplicated elsewhere. These changes 
will be fully reviewed as part of the 2019-
20 audit.

Reasonable

Investment Performance is 
regularly monitored and 
reported.

The level of monitoring and reporting 
was good and benchmarking statistics 
show the Council to be generally 
performing above average.

Substantial

Page  62



53

System Objective Summary of Audit Findings Assurance

All transactions are 
completely and accurately 
recorded on the Council's 
Financial Management 
System

Investment Transactions are recorded in 
a ‘spreadsheet register’ and are 
reconciled with the ledger monthly. The 
format of this Register was changed 
during the year in response to 
Recommendation TM15 made as a 
result of last year’s audit. Whilst there is 
now a greater correlation between 
Register, Ledger, Investment 
Spreadsheet and Investment totals 
reported to Scrutiny Committee some 
variations were still evident. See 
Recommendation TM15 (Partially 
Outstanding)

Reasonable

Loans taken out by the 
Council are appropriately 
documented and repayments 
made for the correct amounts 
on due dates.

Repayments due on the PWLB Loan 
taken out by the Council were made on 
the due dates and for the correct 
amounts. Appropriate supporting 
documentation was held. The loan is due 
to be repaid in May 2019.

Substantial

Page  63



54

Audit Opinion on Governance, Risk and Control Issues

Issue Audit Comment Assurance

Governance Treasury Management is a high profile area. 
Reporting and approval procedures generally 
ensure those responsible for governance are 
fully aware of the policies in place and the 
transactions made but as noted above there are 
some outstanding issues in this area that need to 
be considered and are outlined in the rationale to 
Recommendation TM15 below. 

Reasonable

Risk Management Treasury Management is a high risk area but 
current procedures and policies are considered 
to be addressing these appropriately.

Substantial

Control Processes Control processes overall are very good with only 
a small number of isolated issues / errors 
identified by the audit work undertaken.  

Reasonable

Probability of 
Significant Errors, 
Fraud or non-
compliance

Whilst due to the amounts involved there is the 
possibility of any error being significant, controls 
in respect of investments made are good so 
actual probability is low.

Substantial

Page  64



55

Recommendations Previously Notified to Management That Are Still Outstanding or 
Partly Outstanding

Recommendation TM15 Responsibility: Assistant Director Finance Priority: 3

Reconciliation and reporting processes currently in place should be reviewed and 
consideration given to whether there needs to be a further level of reconciliation 
undertaken to clearly identify the variances which currently exist between the various 
records held and ‘Fund Totals’ reported by each source. 

Rationale

The rationale to the recommendation when originally made last year noted that treasury 
investments / balances were essentially recorded and reported in four ways:

 An Investments Spreadsheet maintained by the Financial Services Officer with the 
main responsibility for Treasury Management. This is a large and complex 
spreadsheet which records all transactions and balances, planned future 
transactions and repayments (where applicable), tables to determine compliance 
with approved investment limits and calculations of investment performance.

 The Investment Register which records ‘current’ transactions and balances and is 
compiled by the Assistant Financial Services Officer from the source documentation 
held to support the Treasury Deals made. This was reconciled with the Ledger on a 
monthly basis and subsequently reviewed by the Assistant Director Finance. This 
effectively maintains an independent check on transactions undertaken.

 The Financial Ledger which records the investments made, and interest received 
across a series of individual ledger codes.

 Reports to each meeting of the Scrutiny Co-ordinating Board which include Fund 
Balances, lists of investments made and repaid in the period since the last report 
and performance information. Figures were primarily taken from the Investments 
spreadsheet compiled by the FSO.

The recommendation was made because the total value of investments held by the 
Council as shown on each of the records varied. This was due to a number of reasons 
e.g. investment loans made to Companies and the Affordable Housing Innovation Fund 
(AHIF) were not included in all records and interest received from the investment with 
the CCLA was accrued on the Investments Spreadsheet but only credited when actually 
paid quarterly on the Investment Register and Ledger. Balance and interest for some 
other ‘pooled funds’ were also shown in different ways.
During 2018-19 efforts have been made to address the recommendation made last year. 
The Investment Register has been replaced with a ‘Closing Balances’ spreadsheet 
which includes ‘Loans to Companies’ and AHIF Balances. The ‘Trial Balance’ report 
used to reconcile the spreadsheet to the ledger has also been expanded to include the 
ledger codes recording these transactions. Both ‘Treasury’ and ‘Service’ Investments are 
now reported to Scrutiny. Notification was also received in April 2019 that the 
Investments Spreadsheet would no longer be compiled as much of the information was 
available via the Arlingclose system.

Page  65



56

Recommendation TM15 Responsibility: Assistant Director Finance Priority: 3

Consequently one of the four sources will be removed in 2019-20 but it is expected that 
some sort of reconciliation will still need to be made with the details held by Arlingclose.
It was also noted during 2018-19 that totals shown for the various categories of 
investment i.e. ‘Cash & Equivalents’, ‘Investments less than 3 months’, ‘Investments’, 
‘Long Term Investments’ as recorded on the Investments Spreadsheet and reported to 
Scrutiny varied from the total shown for the equivalent Ledger Codes even in months 
were the overall total was agreed.
In some months the overall total for each of the four sources differed and the 
reconciliation process still does not incorporate a “cross-source” reconciliation to explain 
any variances that do occur. 
It is therefore considered that work in implementing the recommendation needs to be 
continued to:

 Incorporate totals from the Arlingclose system into the reconciliation process if this 
does in fact replace the Investment spreadsheet.

 Ensure that all investments are categorised correctly and consistently in each 
source.

 Introduce a process to record the reason for any difference between sources. 
Whilst there may be a valid reason for such differences as noted above, such a 
process will ensure that any actual errors are identified and promptly corrected as 
well as providing assurance that all transactions are correctly recorded and 
reported in each source. 

Management Response

Progress has been made to rationalise and expand the reporting on investments. It is 
noted that there some discrepancies remain between the different sources of information 
partly generated from the operational investment document used to control day to day 
trading being archived at month end and not being retrospectively updated, for valuation 
movements as statements are received, post month end. It is judged that this does not 
create a significant risk to the capital invested or material errors in terms of reporting. Once 
the Arlingclose system has been trialled, the process for reconciliation will be re-reviewed 
with a view to resolving the reconciliation differences.

Accepted Yes To Be Implemented By 30/9/2019

Page  66



57

APPENDIX A

DEFINITIONS OF ASSURANCE LEVELS & RECOMMENDATION PRIORITIES
Assurance Level

Assurance 
Level

Definition Basis of Opinion

Substantial There is a sound system of 
internal control in place which 
adequately supports the 
achievement of system 
objectives and minimises risk.

Audit testing indicates that controls 
are consistently and effectively 
applied and no weaknesses were 
identified. However as audit work is 
primarily sample based ‘complete’ 
assurance cannot be given.

Reasonable There is a reasonable system 
of internal control which 
should ensure that system 
objectives are generally 
achieved but some 
weaknesses have been 
identified which may result in 
errors or performance issues 
in certain areas.

Testing has identified that whilst there 
is generally a good system of internal 
control, there are some areas where 
controls could be improved or are not 
always effectively applied. 
Consequently a small number of 
errors may also have been identified.

Partial Although some areas may be 
satisfactory, an unacceptable 
number of weaknesses have 
been identified across the 
control system which means 
there is a high risk of failure of 
meeting all objectives and 
there is the possibility of loss, 
damage to reputation or fraud 
in some areas.

The results of the audit work indicate 
that an unsatisfactory level or range 
of internal controls are in place or that 
controls are not being operated 
effectively and consistently. This is 
likely to be evidenced by a significant 
level of error being identified by audit 
testing.

Minimal The overall system of control 
is weak and the system is 
vulnerable and open to error 
and abuse. There is a high risk 
of system objectives not being 
achieved and / or the 
achievement of objectives 
cannot be substantiated.

Significant non-compliance or a lack 
of adequate controls was identified 
leaving the system vulnerable to error 
and abuse. Control arrangements are 
of a generally poor standard. High 
numbers and / or values of errors 
have been identified.

Page  67



58

Audit Recommendation Priorities and Follow-up Protocol

Priority Definition Follow Up

Priority 1 The recommendation addresses 
a serious control weakness which 
if not corrected is highly likely to 
result in a failure to meet the 
relevant system objective and it 
is considered there is a high risk 
of loss, error, fraud or 
reputational damage

Follow-up will be performed by a 
specific date agreed with senior 
management.

Priority 2 The recommendation addresses 
a weakness in control procedures 
which could result in failure to 
meet the stated system objective 
and / or may result in loss, fraud, 
error or reputational damage 

Follow-up will be performed within 6 
months.

Priority 3 A recommendation which is 
concerned with improving 
operational procedures or 
efficiency but does not 
necessarily relate to an identified 
control weakness and is unlikely 
to result in additional risk if not 
actioned.

Follow-up will be undertaken as part 
of the next audit or within a year 
(whichever is sooner).

PROCEDURAL NOTE – FUNDAMENTAL SYSTEMS PERIODIC AUDIT WORK

Work in relation to this audit was undertaken on a planned basis over the financial year with 
‘key controls’ being tested on a number of occasions throughout the year and other controls 
tested at an agreed time within the year. This ensures that key controls and transactions 
relating to this ‘fundamental’ system are tested over a period of at least 9 months and that 
there is an ongoing audit review of the operation of the system and associated controls.

Any recommendations arising as a result of this work are reported to management on a 
cyclical basis as part of the ‘Periodic Audit Work’ reports to the Accounts & Governance 
Committee. This ensures any control weaknesses are promptly addressed and acted on. Any 
such recommendations are also included in this report and identified accordingly.

Page  68



59

Appendix H

Definition of Assurance Levels and Recommendation Priorities
Assurance
Level

Definition Basis of Opinion

Substantial There is a sound system of 
internal control in place which 
adequately supports the 
achievement of system objectives 
and minimises risk.

Audit testing indicates that controls 
are consistently and effectively 
applied and no weaknesses were 
identified. However, as audit work is 
primarily sample-based, ‘complete’ 
assurance cannot be given.

Reasonable There is a reasonable system of 
internal control which should 
ensure that system objectives are 
generally achieved but some 
weaknesses have been identified 
which may result in errors or 
performance issues in certain 
areas.

Testing has identified that whilst 
there is generally a good system of 
internal control, there are some 
areas where controls could be 
improved, or are not always 
effectively applied.  Consequently, 
a small number of errors may also 
have been identified.

Partial Although some areas may be 
satisfactory, an unacceptable 
number of weaknesses have 
been identified across the control 
system, which means there is a 
high risk of failure of meeting all 
objectives and there is the 
possibility of loss, damage to 
reputation, or fraud, in some 
areas.

The results of the audit work 
indicate that an unsatisfactory level 
or range of internal controls are in 
place, or that controls are not being 
operated effectively and 
consistently. This is likely to be 
evidenced by a significant level of 
error being identified by audit 
testing.

Minimal The overall system of control is 
weak and the system is 
vulnerable and open to error and 
abuse.  There is a high risk of 
system objectives not being 
achieved and / or the 
achievement of objectives cannot 
be substantiated.

Significant non-compliance, or a 
lack of adequate controls was 
identified, leaving the system 
vulnerable to error and abuse.  
Control arrangements are of a 
generally poor standard.  High 
numbers and / or values of errors 
have been identified.

Page  69



60

Audit Recommendation Priorities and Follow-up Protocol

Priority Definition Follow Up

Priority 1 The recommendation addresses a 
serious control weakness which, if 
not corrected, is highly likely to 
result in a failure to meet the 
relevant system objective and it is 
considered there is a high risk of 
loss, error, fraud, or reputational 
damage.

Follow-up will be performed by a 
specific date agreed with senior 
management.

Priority 2 The recommendation addresses a 
weakness in control procedures 
which could result in failure to 
meet the stated system objective 
and / or may result in loss, fraud, 
error, or reputationa1l damage 

Follow-up will be performed within 6 
months.

Priority 3 A recommendation which is 
concerned with improving 
operational procedures or 
efficiency, but does not 
necessarily relate to an identified 
control weakness and is unlikely 
to result in additional risk if not 
actioned.

Follow-up will be undertaken as 
part of the next audit, or within a 
year (whichever is sooner).

Page  70



1

Report No: F34/19
Eden District Council

Accounts and Governance Committee
27 June 2019

Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19
Portfolio: None

Report from: Director of Corporate Services

Wards: All Wards

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1 Purpose
1.1 To provide the Council with an assurance on internal controls that helps to evidence 

the effectiveness of the system of internal control, as set out in the Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS).

2 Recommendation
It is recommended that the Committee notes the report.

3 Report Details
3.1 The Council has an internal audit function in line with section 5 of the Accounts and 

Audit (Regulations 2015 (England and Wales). This operates within appropriate 
‘public sector internal auditing standards or guidance’ as defined by Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the associated Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Local Government Application Note (LGAN).

3.2 This report sets out an opinion on the Council’s overall control environment, based 
on the output of the 2018/19 internal audit plan, and reports on the effectiveness of 
the Internal Audit service.

3.3 The Head of Internal Audit’s opinion is that, based on the evidence provided through:

 selection of areas to review as set out in the approved, risk based audit plan for 
2018/19, and

 the completion of the internal audits provided by TIAA and EIAS for 2018/19, in 
line with the approved plan

there was an effective framework of governance, risk management and control in 
place during 2018/19. Assurance can never be absolute and it is not possible to give 
complete assurance that there are no major weaknesses. Internal Audit work has not 
flagged any issues that need to be raised in the Annual Governance Statement. 
Further details on completion of the 2018/19 audit plan and an assessment on the 
quality of the internal audit process are covered in more detail below.

3.4 Completion of the Audit Plan
3.4.1 The Council’s Audit Plan for 2018/19 comprised 210 days of planned audit work (this 

does not include the time spent on other audit work, such as special investigations).  
This was resourced by buying in 80 days from TIAA Limited, with the remainder 
being provided by the Council’s Senior Auditor (Eden Internal Audit Service (EIAS)).

Page  71

Agenda Item 6



2

3.4.2 The annual reports from TIAA Limited and EIAS are set out in Appendix 1 and 
Appendix 2 respectively. All planned audits for 2018/19 have been completed and 
reported to this Committee (see progress against 2018/19 audit plan report on this 
agenda).

3.4.3 As reported in the progress against the 2018/19 audit plan, elsewhere on this 
agenda, all the planned reports were completed in the year. TIAA issued 7 reports, 6 
with substantial assurance, 1 with reasonable. EIAS issued 6 reports, 1 with 
substantial assurance, 5 with reasonable assurance. Taken together, these provide 
evidence of at least reasonable assurance over the effectiveness of internal controls.

3.5 Quality Assurance
3.5.1 During the year, the EIAS was subject to detailed external review by CIPFA. This 

was reported to Accounts and Governance Committee in February. This concluded 
that there were some opportunities for improvements, but the service generally 
conformed with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). This is the 
highest rating.

3.6 Annual Governance Statement (AGS)
3.6.1 The AGS is the annual review of effectiveness of the system of internal control. The 

Council has to complete and publish this alongside the statement of accounts. A key 
source of evidence is the annual internal audit opinion from this report.  The AGS 
was considered by this Committee on 18 April 2019 (Ref F28/19). The AGS was 
amended to reflect changes asked for by the Committee and any other issues 
between the date of review and 30 May 2019. An item was added to the AGS action 
plan reflecting a specific issue around a particular contract. The unaudited AGS was 
signed off by the Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council on 30 May 2019.

3.6.2 An updated AGS will be presented to this Committee on 25 July 2019, when the 
Audited Accounts are considered. This will reflect the finalised internal audit opinion 
from this report and any other issues to be reflected up to the date of sign off.

4 Policy Framework
4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are:

 Decent Homes for All;
 Strong Economy, Rich Environment;
 Thriving Communities; and
 Quality Council

5 Consultation
5.1 There has been no consultation with Ward Councillors or Portfolio Holders.

6 Implications
6.1 Financial and Resources
6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income must 

be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council 
Plan 2015-2019, as agreed at Council on 17 September 2015.

6.1.2 There are no direct financial implcations of the report.

Page  72



3

6.2 Legal
6.2.1 There are no direct legal implications of the report. The Council is required to 

operate an internal audit function in line with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015.

6.3 Human Resources
6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications.
6.4 Statutory Considerations

Consideration: Details of any implications 
and proposed measures to 
address:

Equality and Diversity There are no implications

Health, Social Environmental and Economic Impact There are no implications

Crime and Disorder There are no implications

Children and Safeguarding There are no implications

6.5 Risk Management

Risk Consequence Controls Required
Issues raised by Internal 
Audit are not appropriately 
actioned by management

Weak systems control, 
increased risk of theft and 
fraud.

Reporting of internal audit 
recommendations publicly 
to Committee and tracking 
implementation of these.

Audit programme slipping Approved programme not 
delivered, resources not 
directed as planned and 
reported.

Regular reporting on 
internal audit progress.

7 Other Options Considered
7.1 No other options have been considered.

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation
8.1 To set out the overall opinion on internal controls based on the outcome of internal 

audit reviews and the effectiveness of the internal function for the year.
Tracking Information

Governance Check Date Considered
Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 19 June 2019

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 18 June 2019

Relevant Director As per Monitoring Officer sign off above.

Background Papers: Internal Audit Reports 2018/19
Appendices: Appendix 1: TIAA Limited Annual Report 2018/19

Appendix 2: EIAS Annual Audit Report 2018/19
Contact Officer: Pete Notley, Assistant Director Finance, 01768 212209

Page  73



4

Intentionally Blank

Page  74



1

Appendix 1

Bought-in Internal Audit – TIAA Limited

EDEN DISTRICT COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT

2018/19

June 2019

Page  75



2

CONTENTS Page
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 3

1. SERVICE BACKGROUND 2

2. REVIEW OF PERIOD 6

3. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 7

4. RECOMMENDATIONS AND FOLLOW UP IN THE YEAR 8

5. QUALIFICATIONS TO THE OPINION 2

APPENDIX A 2

Reports issued in 2018/19 2

Page  76



3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Background

The purpose of this report is to support the Head of Internal Audit’s annual reporting 
requirements set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The Head of 
Internal Audit’s formal annual report should present an opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control, 
and must incorporate:
a) The opinion;
b) A summary of the work that supports the opinion, and;
c) A statement on conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and the results of 

the quality assurance and improvement programme.

The PSIAS states that “the Head of Internal Audit must deliver an annual internal audit 
opinion and report that can be used by the organisation to inform its governance statement”. 
Therefore, in setting out how it meets the reporting requirements, this report also outlines 
how the Internal Audit function has supported the Council in meeting the requirements of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the 2007 CIPFA/SOLACE Framework, together 
with the 2012 guidance note and Addendum, with regard to internal control.

Scope of Responsibility

The Council is responsible for ensuring its business is conducted in accordance with law and 
proper standards.  In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible 
for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective 
exercise of the Council’s functions and which includes arrangements for the management of 
risk.

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 
eliminate risk of failure to achieve polices, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.

Basis of Assurance

We have conducted our audits in accordance with professional standards and good practice 
contained within the PSIAS and additionally from our own internal quality assurance 
systems.  We have also outlined any limitations in the scope of our audit work in 
“qualifications to the opinion” within the detail of this report.

In addition, TIAA Limited has undertaken a self-assessment against the requirements of the 
PSIAS, and can confirm continued conformance.

Page  77



4

TIAA Limited Annual Opinion Statement

This opinion statement is provided in support of the Council’s Annual Governance Statement 
as required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. Our opinion is derived from 
work carried out by TIAA Limited during the year as part of the agreed internal audit plan for 
2018/19. The Internal Audit plan for 2018/19 was developed to primarily provide 
management and the Council’s Audit Committee with independent assurance on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements for governance, risk management 
and internal control.

The PSIAS require the Head of internal audit to provide an annual opinion based on an 
objective assessment of the framework of governance, risk management and control. As the 
Council are required to produce an Annual Governance Statement sources of assurance are 
reflected within this process, which Internal Audit are a part of; therefore the control 
environment is reviewed more fully in this way.

2018/19 Year Opinion

The purpose of this report is to give my opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
systems of risk management, governance and internal control from the work undertaken by 
TIAA Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018.

In giving my opinion it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute and it is not 
possible to give complete assurance that there are no major weaknesses. My opinion is 
based on the work undertaken by internal audit during the year, including the outcomes of 
follow up work.

I am of the opinion that, for the areas reviewed during the year at Eden District Council, there 
is reasonable assurance that effective risk management, control and governance processes 
are in place to manage the achievement of its objectives. Audit testing has confirmed that 
controls are generally working effectively in practice.

Where internal audit work has identified scope for improvements, the management response 
has been appropriate and action plans agreed.

The Annual Governance Statement process separately records any additional weaknesses 
reflecting the assurance provided from all sources both internal and external. Any significant 
weaknesses would be recorded in the Annual Governance Statement.

Page  78



5

Staff Co-operation and Declaration of Audit Independence

The successful achievement of the audit plan is dependent on the contribution of the 
Council’s staff as audit clients. We would like to record our appreciation for the involvement 
and commitment of staff, and for their critical appraisal of our recommendations during the 
year.

The LGAN requires an annual declaration of audit independence. I can confirm that there 
has been no threat to the independence of our work that would impact on the provision of my 
annual opinion statement.

Peter Harrison,
Director, TIAA Limited.

Page  79



6

1. SERVICE BACKGROUND

1.1 Our reporting lines

TIAA Limited operate as part of the Council’s Internal Audit service under the direction 
of the Director of Finance (Head of Internal Audit) with access to the Chief Executive 
and elected Members if, in exceptional circumstances, we consider this necessary.

The remainder of the Internal Audit function is undertaken by the Council’s Senior 
Auditor.

The Director, TIAA Limited, has regular meetings with the Director of Finance to 
discuss progress.

This is the third year of a three year contract to provide internal audit services to Eden 
District Council.

1.2 Professional standards

We aim to deliver all our work in line with the mandatory PSIAS and associated CIPFA 
Local Government Application Note.

1.3 Our audit process

We adopt a risk-based approach to identify, and evaluate the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the controls in place to mitigate risk across the Council.

The level and mix of staff utilised for the Internal Audit Service is matched to the 
complexity of each assignment, with specialists, such as computer auditors, utilised 
where appropriate. The use of TIAA Limited, as internal audit provider, gives the 
benefit of access to audit staff with a wide range of skills and experience.

2. REVIEW OF PERIOD

2.1 Progress against 2018/19 Annual Plan

We have issued seven final reports, which completes the planned work of TIAA 
Limited for 2018/19. A detailed analysis of the current situation regarding the 2018/19 
Plan is provided in Appendix A. In addition, TIAA undertook a grant claim audit in 
relation to Historic England Funding. 

Page  80



7

3. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE

For each audit, we give an overall opinion on the level of assurance which we 
consider is provided by the controls in place within the system audited.  The following 
classification of assurance levels has been adopted:

Level Definition
Substantial Assurance Based upon our findings there is a 

robust series of suitably designed 
internal controls in place upon which 
the organisation relies to manage the 
risk of failure of the continuous and 
effective achievement of the 
objectives of the process, which at the 
time of our review were being 
consistently applied.

Reasonable Assurance Based upon our findings there is a 
series of controls in place, however 
there are potential risks that they may 
not be sufficient to ensure that the 
individual objectives of the process 
are achieved in a continuous and 
effective manner. Improvements are 
required to enhance the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the controls to 
mitigate these risks. 

Limited Assurance Based upon our findings the controls 
in place are not sufficient to ensure 
that the organisation can rely upon 
them to manage the risks to the 
continuous and effective achievement 
of the objectives of the process. 
Significant improvements are required 
to improve the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the controls. 

No Assurance Based upon our findings there is a 
fundamental breakdown or absence 
of core internal controls such that the 
organisation cannot rely upon them to 
manage the risks to the continuous 
and effective achievement the 
objectives of the process. Immediate 
action is required to improve the 
adequacy and effectiveness of 
controls. 

Page  81



8

Four audits were assessed as giving substantial assurance and two were assessed as 
giving reasonable assurance. The review of Digital Innovation Programme was 
assessed as only giving limited assurance.  

Reports Issued Substantial 
Assurance

Reasonable 
Assurance

Limited 
Assurance

No 
Assurance

No. % No. % No. % No. %

2018/19 7 6 86 1 14 0 0 0 0

The conclusions and assurance levels specified for each audit are used to support the 
Council’s governance review arrangements, as required by the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 and the 2007 CIPFA/SOLACE Framework, together with the 2012 
guidance note and Addendum.

4. RECOMMENDATIONS AND FOLLOW UP IN THE YEAR
4.1 Introduction

Our audit recommendations are categorised by three priority levels.  These 
categorisations are described below.

Priority 1 Urgent – Fundamental control issue on which action should be taken 
immediately.

Priority 2 Important – Control issue on which action should be taken at the earliest 
opportunity.

Priority 3 Routine – Control issue on which action should be taken.

4.2 Recommendations made
The following table summarises the number of audit recommendations made during 
the year in our Final Reports, and the management responses, analysed in 
accordance with the above categories.

Recommendations Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3

Fully Accepted 17 0 3 14

Partly Accepted 0 0 0 0

Not Accepted 0 0 0 0

Page  82



9

4.3 Implementation of recommendations
Dates for implementation of recommendations are indicated in each of the audit 
reports. The Council should ensure all recommendations made within 2018/19 are 
addressed within 2019/2020.

5. QUALIFICATIONS TO THE OPINION

Internal Audit has had unrestricted access to all areas and systems across the authority 
and has received appropriate co-operation from officers and Members.

Page  83



10

APPENDIX A

PROGRESS AGAINST THE INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/2019

Audit Assignment Status Assurance

FUNDAMENTAL SYSTEMS
Council Tax Final Substantial
National Non-Domestic Rates Final Substantial
Housing Benefits Final Substantial
OTHER SERVICES / SYSTEMS
Development Control and Building Regulations Final Substantial
Insurance, Risk Management and Health and Safety Final Substantial
Licensing – Premises and Clubs Final Substantial
Procurement and Contract Monitoring Final Reasonable

Page  84



1

Appendix 2

Eden District Council
INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT

Eden District Council Internal Audit Service (EIAS)
2018-2019
June 2019

Page  85



2

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Background

The purpose of this report is to support the Head of Internal Audit’s annual reporting 
requirements set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The Head of 
Internal Audit’s formal annual report should present an opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control, 
and must incorporate:

a) The opinion;

b)  A summary of the work that supports the opinion, and;

c) A statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the results of the quality assurance and 
improvement programme.

The PSIAS state that “the Head of Internal Audit must deliver an annual internal audit opinion 
and report that can be used by the organisation to inform its governance statement”. The 
work covered by this report and the opinion arising from it meets this requirement. The report 
also outlines how the Internal Audit function has supported the Council in meeting the 
requirements of Part 2 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which relate to Internal 
Control. 

Scope of Responsibility

The Council is responsible for ensuring its business is conducted in accordance with law and 
proper standards.  In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible 
for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective 
exercise of the Council’s functions and which includes arrangements for the management of 
risk.

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 
eliminate risk of failure to achieve polices, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  

Basis of Assurance

Audits have been conducted in accordance with professional standards and good practice 
contained within the PSIAS and internal quality assurance systems.  Any limitations in the 
scope of audit work are outlined in individual audit reports and the “qualifications to the 
opinion” section of this report.

A self-assessment has been made against the requirements of the PSIAS, which indicates 
that audit work undertaken by in-house audit service conforms in all material respects. An 
external assessment by CIPFA was also undertaken in 2018-19 which concluded that the 
service “generally conforms to the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
and those of the Local Government Application Note”. The results of both assessments serve 
to demonstrate that audit work has been undertaken to an appropriate standard.

In addition Committee Agendas and Reports and notes of management meetings published 
during the year were reviewed in order to monitor the issues facing the Council and the 

Page  86



3

responses to these. This maintains an overview of those areas that may not be included in 
the Audit Plan each year. 

Senior Auditor (Eden DC Internal Audit Service) Annual Opinion Statement

The PSIAS require an annual opinion based on an objective assessment of the framework of 
governance, risk management and control.

This opinion statement is provided in support of the Council’s Annual Governance Statement 
as required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  The opinion is derived from 
work carried out by the In-House Service during the year as part of the agreed internal audit 
plan for 2018-19. The Internal Audit plan was developed primarily to provide management 
with independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control 
environment with the work of the in-house service focussed primarily on the ‘fundamental’ 
financial systems. Audit testing undertaken as part of the planned work also provides 
assurance that the Council is meeting its responsibilities under the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations to ensure that financial control systems are observed and accounting records 
are kept up to date.

The level of coverage in the Audit Plan was less than anticipated in 2018-19 due to a number 
of factors which are outlined in Appendix A. This obviously affects the degree of assurance 
that can be given in some areas as all planned testing was not undertaken. Areas affected 
are noted in the respective reports for each system audited. It is judged that adequate 
coverage was achieved to support the annual opinion.

It should be noted that one of the recommendations in the PSIAS Compliance assessment 
undertaken by CIPFA was that the Council should consider the extent of the testing which it 
currently undertakes on the fundamental systems. This will be reviewed in 2019-20, but such 
a recommendation would indicate that CIPFA do not consider it necessary to undertake full 
testing of each system every year in order to comply with the PSIAS. 

2018-19 Year Opinion

The purpose of this report is to give my opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
systems of risk management, governance and internal control from the work undertaken by 
me for the financial year ended 31 March 2019. 

In giving my opinion it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute and it is not 
possible to give complete assurance that there are no major weaknesses.  My opinion is 
based on the work undertaken during the year, including the outcomes of follow up work.

My overall opinion is that, for the systems reviewed by the In-House Service, audit testing 
has confirmed that controls are generally working effectively in practice although some work 
still needs to be completed to improve processes in some systems. Some ongoing issues 
with the Sundry Debtors system remains the main concern.

Where internal audit work has identified scope for improvements, the management response 
has been appropriate and action plans agreed.

Only one case was raised under the Confidential Reporting Code in 2018-19. Following a 
brief investigation it was concluded that the issue queried by the employee was not a breach 

Page  87



4

of policy and no further action was taken. Another case originally raised in 2017-18 was also 
concluded during the year.

Taking into account all the work undertaken during the year it is therefore considered that a 
‘Satisfactory’ opinion can be given. 

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) process separately records any additional issues 
reflecting the assurance provided from all sources both internal and external. The AGS was 
reported to the Accounts & Governance Committee on 18th April 2019.

Staff co-operation and declaration of audit independence

The successful achievement of the audit plan is dependent on the contribution of the 
Council’s staff as audit clients.  I would like to record appreciation for the involvement and 
commitment of staff, and for their critical appraisal of recommendations made during the 
year.

The Local Government Application Note which CIPFA issued to support the PSIAS requires 
an annual declaration of audit independence.  A restructure of the Council took place in 
2018-19 which resulted in the Internal Audit function coming under the responsibilities of the 
Assistant Director Finance, which effectively made this post Head of Internal Audit as well. 
The Assistant Director Finance, also has direct management responsibility for a number of 
the main financial systems audited each year. This could potentially be perceived as being a 
‘conflict of interests’ and threaten the independence of the function. There are however 
provisions in the Council’s Constitution which give Internal Audit the right to report to a higher 
level if it is considered that the independence of any audit findings or recommendations is 
being threatened by the actions of the Assistant Director. No such issues arose in 2018-19 
and no audit findings and recommendations were considered to have not been 
compromised. I am therefore able to provide the required declaration of independence.

Gary Little,
Senior Auditor, Eden DC ‘In-House’ Internal Audit Service.

Page  88



5

1. SERVICE BACKGROUND
1.1 Reporting Lines

The in-house service operates as part of the Council’s Internal Audit service reporting 
to and under the direction of the Assistant Director Finance in his role as Head of 
Internal Audit. Direct access to the Chief Executive and elected Members is also 
permitted by the Accounts & Audit Rules if this is considered necessary.

The Senior Auditor has monthly meetings with the Assistant Director and regular 
communication at other times as necessary to discuss progress on audit work and 
other related issues. Liaison meetings with External Audit are also attended as 
considered necessary.

The remainder of the Internal Audit function is undertaken by TIAA Ltd under the 
control of an Audit Director and the direction of Eden’s Assistant Director Finance as 
‘Client Officer’ and ‘Head of Internal Audit’.

1.2 Professional Standards
Audit work is delivered in line with the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards and the associated CIPFA Local Government Application Note.

1.3 The Audit Process
A risk-based systems approach is undertaken to identify, and evaluate the application 
of financial and other management controls.

A range of compliance and substantive testing is undertaken to verify the consistent 
application of expected controls and all working papers are maintained in electronic 
format with extensive use of hyperlinks to aid review and provide easy access to 
evidence of audit findings.

As there is only one internal auditor directly employed by the Council, all in-house 
audit work is undertaken by that person. Any specialist or particularly complex 
assignments which may arise would be allocated to TIAA Ltd, who as an internal audit 
provider, have the benefit of access to audit staff with a wide range of skills and 
experience. 

2. REVIEW OF PERIOD
2.1 Progress against the 2018-19 Annual Plan

As noted above all planned ‘fundamental systems’ work was not undertaken during 
the year although adequate coverage for all systems was obtained. The reasons for 
this and an analysis of the reports issued during the year are included in Appendix A.

2.2 Liaison with External Audit
Liaison with external audit is undertaken throughout the year as required and they 
have had full access to internal audit working papers to assist in the delivery of their 
work.

The aim is to maximise the benefit from the Internal Audit service by avoiding 
duplication of coverage and facilitating where appropriate the external audit approach, 
in order to provide maximum assurance.

Page  89



6

3. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE
At the conclusion of each audit an overall opinion on the level of assurance is given 
based on the findings arising from the audit with regard to Governance, Risk 
Management, Control Processes and the probability of significant error, fraud and 
non-compliance. An assurance rating is given to each of these categories along with a 
rating for each system objective identified and agreed with management. The 
following lassification of assurance levels has been adopted:

Assurance 
Level

Definition Basis of Opinion

Substantial There is a sound system of 
internal control in place which 
adequately supports the 
achievement of system 
objectives and minimises risk.

Audit testing indicates that controls 
are consistently and effectively 
applied and no weaknesses were 
identified. However as audit work is 
primarily sample based ‘complete’ 
assurance cannot be given.

Reasonable There is a reasonable system of 
internal control which should 
ensure that system objectives are 
generally achieved but some 
weaknesses have been identified 
which may result in errors or 
performance issues in certain 
areas.

Testing has identified that whilst 
there is generally a good system of 
internal control, there are some 
areas where controls could be 
improved or are not always 
effectively applied. Consequently a 
small number of errors may also 
have been identified.

Partial Although some areas may be 
satisfactory, an unacceptable 
number of weaknesses have 
been identified across the control 
system which means there is a 
high risk of failure of meeting all 
objectives and there is the 
possibility of loss, damage to 
reputation or fraud in some 
areas.

The results of the audit work 
indicate that an unsatisfactory level 
or range of internal controls are in 
place or that controls are not being 
operated effectively and 
consistently. This is likely to be 
evidenced by a significant level of 
error being identified by audit 
testing.

Minimal The overall system of control is 
weak and the system is 
vulnerable and open to error and 
abuse. There is a high risk of 
system objectives not being 
achieved and / or the 
achievement of objectives cannot 
be substantiated.

Significant non-compliance or a 
lack of adequate controls was 
identified leaving the system 
vulnerable to error and abuse. 
Control arrangements are of a 
generally poor standard. High 
numbers and / or values of errors 
have been identified.

Page  90



7

Assurance ratings given to the audits completed during the year were as follows: 

Substantial 
Assurance

Reasonable 
Assurance

Partial
Assurance

Minimal
AssuranceReports Issued

No. % No. % No. % No. %

Final 6 1 17% 5 83% 0 0% 0 0%

The conclusions and assurance levels specified for each audit are used to support the 
Council’s governance review arrangements, as required by the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015.

4. RECOMMENDATIONS MADE IN THE YEAR
4.1 Recommendation Categories

Audit recommendations are categorised by three priority levels i.e.

Priority Definition

Priority 1 The recommendation addresses a serious control weakness which if 
not corrected is highly likely to result in a failure to meet the relevant 
system objective and it is considered there is a high risk of loss, error, 
fraud or reputational damage  

Priority 2 The recommendation addresses a weakness in control procedures 
which could result in failure to meet the stated system objective and / 
or may result in loss, fraud, error or reputational damage 

Priority 3 A recommendation which is concerned with improving operational 
procedures or efficiency but does not necessarily relate to an 
identified control weakness and is unlikely to result in additional risk if 
not actioned.

4.2 Recommendations made
The following table summarises the number of audit recommendations made during 
the year and the management responses, analysed in accordance with the above 
categories. 

Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3Recommendations Made
6 0 1 5

Fully Accepted 6 0 1 5
Partly Accepted 0 0 0 0
Not Accepted 0 0 0 0

The Priority 2 recommendation and four of the Priority 3 recommendations are ones 
from previous years which remain outstanding or partly outstanding.

5. QUALIFICATIONS TO THE OPINION
Internal Audit has had unrestricted access to all areas and systems across the authority 
and has received appropriate co-operation from officers and Members. There are 
therefore no qualifications to the opinion given.

Page  91



8

Appendix A

Reports Issued for 2018-19 and Review of Work Undertaken

Audit Assignment Report 
Status Assurance

Fundamental Systems*

Main Accounting System Final Substantial

Payroll Final Reasonable

Creditors & Purchase Ordering Final Reasonable

Income Collection Final Reasonable

Sundry Debtors Final Reasonable

Treasury Management Final Reasonable

Audit Consultancy Reports

Income Collection & Related Software Systems

Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards 

Sundry Debtors System including Periodic Income

See Audit 
Consultancy 
Work below

*Periodic Update Reports on work undertaken on the Fundamental Systems audits were also 
issued in August 2018, October 2018 & January 2019.

There was an over-run of 17 days in planned audit time on the ‘fundamental’ systems due to 
a number of factors including:

 Updating and revising some system documentation and test records due to various 
changes in the systems audited.

 Undertaking further investigation of some problems and issues identified during audit 
testing in order to provide a sufficiently supported statement of assurance or determine 
appropriate recommendations.

 Extension or additions to planned sample testing due to various factors including system 
changes, extensions to system provision and increases or variations in transactions. 

Just over 17 days planned audit work was also not completed. This can be broken down as 
follows:

Main Accounting System – 4 days
Payroll – 4 days
Creditors & Ordering System – 9 days

Page  92



9

This was due to a number of factors including:

 Delays in starting planned work for 2018-19 due to the need to complete sufficient work 
for 2017-18 in order to provide an adequate basis for issuing the required statement of 
assurance. This took 22 days of audit time at the beginning of 2018-19. Delays in 
completing the 2017-18 Plan had arisen due to the need to investigate a number of 
referrals under the Confidential Reporting Code.

 The over-run of 17 days on the planned work that was undertaken as noted above.

 Additional time spent on work in connection with systems that were the subject of audit 
consultancy work during the year. This time was mostly covered by the 30 days allocated 
for Consultancy work in the audit plan, however the need to replace the Council’s Income 
Collection software by September 2019 (see below) meant that some ‘time critical’ work 
in connection with this had to be given priority over completion of the audit plan.

Audit Consultancy and ‘Other’ Work
Income Collection Software Systems

Previous Annual Reports have noted the Senior Auditor’s ongoing involvement with the 
PARIS System due to acting as Project Manager for upgrades undertaken in 2013-14 and 
2017-18. This arose from a similar role when the new Financial Management System was 
introduced in 2004-5 which also included setting up the PARIS system. 

The Audit Consultancy Report issued last year recommended that the Senior Auditor’s 
involvement with the system was continued due to the knowledge already held and future 
work that would be required to link PARIS with the Council’s Digital Integration Project. 
Whilst this work is not strictly of an audit nature it does provide useful detailed knowledge of 
the operation of the Council’s income collection processes which support the audit opinion 
given to the system and provide a firm basis for any audit consultancy work undertaken. 
Audit Independence is maintained by day to day system management being undertaken by 
an officer in the Revenues & Benefits section. The report was subsequently approved by 
Accounts and Governance Committee.

In June 2018 however the Council were informed that the PARIS software had been 
purchased from Northgate by Civica. The following month notification was received that 
PARIS would only be supported by Civica until existing contracts expired. In the Council’s 
case this is September 2019. Civica consequently offered to replace PARIS on a ‘like-for-like’ 
basis with their own CivicaPay software.

On the basis of the Senior Auditor’s previous involvement in such projects as noted above he 
was requested to ‘project manage’ the implementation along with the Systems and Quality 
Manager. Arrangements for this and how the new software could be incorporated into the 
ongoing Digital Innovation Project took up the majority of audit consultancy time allocated for 
the year.

Page  93



10

Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards (PCIDSS)

Work is being undertaken to help the Council meet the latest Payment Card Industry Data 
Security Standards (PCIDSS). Although closely linked to the PARIS system due to this being 
the method by which the Council takes card payments, the standards are also concerned 
with network, server and information security. The CivicaPay software although being 
provided on a ‘like-for-like’ basis to PARIS, is actually a ‘hosted service’ and runs on servers 
located in one of Civica’s Data Centres. Many PCI-DSS requirements will therefore be 
removed from the scope of the Council’s compliance when the system goes live as card data 
is no longer processed over its network. Some areas will still need to be addressed however, 
particularly the taking of card payments by Council staff over the telephone. Civica did offer a 
third party product as part of the new software implementation but this was at an additional 
cost. Two different cost options were also provided depending on the level of functionality 
required. There would have been some benefits in undertaking this work as part of the 
CivicaPay implementation but it was considered that a satisfactory business case needed to 
be prepared to justify the cost of this additional software in comparison to the volume of card 
transactions actually taken by the Council in this way. There are currently other controls in 
place which partly mitigate the risk to the Council in this respect and the use of such software 
is currently not a requirement of the payment card providers. It is considered that it is only a 
matter of time until such requirements are specified however and consequently the issue will 
be reviewed further as part of the work to be undertaken in 2019-20.

Debtors System & Periodic Income

Internal Audit reports in recent years have highlighted various concerns with the debtors 
system particularly ‘periodic income’. Changes to the debtors system in December 2015 also 
raised a number of control issues and resulted in an urgent request from audit to address 
these. Considerable work was undertaken in this respect and some improvement has taken 
place but concerns still remain in this area. A ‘Recurring Card Payments’ module was offered 
by Civica as part of the new software implementation which could potentially solve a number 
of the problems identified in respect of the raising of periodic income invoices and streamline 
the invoice raising process overall. As this was not part of the ‘like-for-like’ replacement of 
PARIS however, there was an extra cost to this module and it was considered that an 
appropriate business case needed to be built which considered likely take up by customers 
and how this could be integrated into the Digital Innovation Project before a request was 
made for additional funding for this.

This will be considered further in 2019-20 along with a review of other debtors system 
processes in conjunction with the shift in Debtors System work due to take place in 2019-20. 
(See Recommendation SD14 in the Sundry Debtors System Internal Audit Report for further 
information).

Page  94



11

Appendix B

Audit Performance & Quality Assurance

Aspect of 
Performance

Performance 
Measured Performance Indicator Target 2018-19 2017-18

Completion of internal 
audit plan

% of planned audit days 
not achieved

0% 17%
(22/130)

33%
(43/130)

Audits are completed 
on time

% of audits undertaken 
completed in planned time

100% 0%
(0/6)

0%
(0/6)

Audit reports are 
issued promptly on 
completion of the 
audit

% of draft reports issued 
within 10 working days of 
completion of audit work.

100% 100%
(6/6)

100%
(6/6)

Effectiveness of 
recommendations 
made

% of recommendations 
made which are fully 
accepted.

100% 100%
(8/8)

100%
(8/8)

Effectiveness of audit 
follow-up

Number of accepted 
recommendations due to 
have been implemented 
that are still outstanding.

0 0 3

Productivity 
and 
Operations

Items in the Action 
Plan are implemented 
by the due dates

Items actioned on time.   

Progress & 
performance targets 
met

Staff Appraisal Scheme – 
Satisfactory comments re 
achievement of objectives.

 Appraisals 
not 

completed 
in 2018-19

Appraisals 
not 

undertaken 
in 2017-18

Staff 
Performance

Absence Number of days sickness 
and other absence

0 6 0

% Compliance with PSIAS 
/ LGAN

100% Yes=91.3% 
Partial=3.3%

No=1%
N/A=4.4%

Not Fully 
Assessed / 

Documented

Adherence to 
professional 
standards

Integrity, Objectivity and 
Competency of the auditor 
confirmed by auditee for 
all audits undertaken.

  

Review of ‘the 
effectiveness of the 
system of internal 
control’

Review approved by 
Accounts & Governance 
Committee

 Final 
authorisat

ion by 
AGC July 

‘19



The External Auditor 
is able to rely on the 
work of Internal Audit

Grant Thornton confirm 
reliance on the work of 
Internal Audit

 To be 
confirmed



Quality

Audit provides 
assurance to 
managers on system 
of internal control

% of Satisfaction 
Questionnaires with a 
rating of 3 (Good) or more

100% 100%
(6/6)

100%
(6/6)

Client 
Satisfaction

Managers are 
satisfied with the 
overall conduct of 
each audit

Satisfaction Questionnaire 
average rating of 3 (Good) 
or more (includes all 
categories)

3.00 3.5
(average 

of 28 
Ratings)

4.0
(average 

of 28 
Ratings)

Page  95



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Report No: F32/19
Eden District Council

Accounts and Governance Committee
27 June 2019

Internal Audit: Implementation of Recommendations
Portfolio: None

Report from: Director of Corporate Services

Wards: All Wards

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1 Purpose
1.1 To set out progress on implementing the agreed recommendations from internal audit 

reports.

2 Recommendation
That progress against the agreed recommendations is noted.

3 Report Details
3.1 The Council's internal audit service is currently undertaken by an external contractor, 

TIAA Limited, and the Council’s Senior (Internal) Auditor.  For each completed audit, a 
summary report is brought to this Committee.  This includes full details of any 
recommendations not agreed by management.

3.2 All audits categorise their recommendations as 'Major', 'Important', or 'Minor'.  All 
'Major' or 'Important' recommendations outstanding at the last Committee meeting, 
plus any new recommendations from completed audits (except for those noted as 
‘implemented’ in the audit report), are reported to this meeting.  The Appendix sets out 
the current position on these recommendations.  If a recommendation has not been 
actioned by the due date, there is an explanatory note.  Recommendations not due for 
action yet are shaded.

3.3 Any recommendations related to Information Technology (IT) are tracked by South 
Lakeland District Council, as they are the employing authority for the shared service.  
Responses to IT audits are considered by the Shared IT Board.

3.4 Progress on implementing recommendations is set out in Appendix 1 to this report..

4 Policy Framework
4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are:

 Decent Homes for All;
 Strong Economy, Rich Environment;
 Thriving Communities; and
 Quality Council.

4.2 Internal Audit supports all four corporate priority areas.

5 Consultation
5.1 There has been no consultation with Ward Councillors or Portfolio Holders.

Page  97

Agenda Item 7



2

6 Implications
6.1 Financial and Resources
6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income must be 

made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council Plan 
2015-2019, as agreed at Council on 17 September 2015.

6.1.2 There are no implications.
6.2 Legal
6.2.1 There are no Legal implications.
6.3 Human Resources
6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications.
6.4 Statutory Considerations

Consideration: Details of any implications and 
proposed measures to address:

Equality and Diversity There are no implications

Health, Social Environmental and Economic Impact There are no implications

Crime and Disorder There are no implications

Children and Safeguarding There are no implications

6.5 Risk Management

Risk Consequence Controls Required
Recommendations are not 
implemented in accordance 
with the agreed timescale

There is a risk that the 
Council's systems will not 
be as efficient and as 
effective as they should be

Effective internal audit and 
monitoring of 
implementation of 
recommendations

7 Other Options Considered
7.1 No other options have been considered.

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation
8.1 The report is for noting and to demonstrate progress to address control weaknesses 

raised.
Tracking Information

Governance Check Date Considered
Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 12 June 2019

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 18 June 2019

Assistant Director Not Applicable

Background Papers: TIAA Internal Audit reports
Senior Auditor reports

Appendix 1 : Progress on Implementing Recommendations
Contact Officer: Pete Notely, Assistant Dirrector Finance, 01768 212209

Page  98



1

Appendix 1
Progress on Implementing Recommendations

Audit Year 2018-2019

Audit Reported to 
Accounts and 
Governance 
Committee

Ref Detail Priority Due By 
End Of

Responsible 
Officer

Current Position

21 Feb 19 1 It be ensured that current 
practices align with 
Procurement Procedure 7.4 
relating to credit checks.

Important End Dec 
2018

Contracts 
Manager

The Procurement team now carry 
out any required credits checks as  
the Procurement Procedure 7.4 

Assurance 
Review of 
Procurement 
and Contract 
Monitoring 21 Feb 19 2 Procurement Rule 3.4 be 

complied with regarding 
advertising of opportunities on 
the Council's website.

Important May 2019 
(Constitution)

Director of 
Corporate 
Services

Section 3.4 of the procurement 
rules in the updated consititution 
is clear that where a tender is 
advertised it should be through 
the Chest. The procurement 
procedures add further guidance 
to this. 

P
age  99



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 External Audit Reports
	External Audit Reports
	1 Purpose
	2 Recommendation
	3 Report Details
	4 Policy Framework
	5 Consultation
	6 Implications
	6.1 Financial and Resources
	6.2 Legal
	6.3 Human Resources
	6.4 Statutory Considerations
	6.5 Risk Management

	7 Other Options Considered
	8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation
	F37Jun19-External-Audit-Reports-Appendix1_1920Feeletter.pdf
	Planned Audit Fee for 2019/20
	Scale Fee
	Scope of the Audit Fee
	Value for Money Conclusion
	Billing Schedule
	Outline Audit Timetable
	Additional Work
	Quality Assurance



	5 Internal Audit: Completed Reports and Progress Against Annual Plan
	6 Internal Audit Annual Report 2018-2019
	7 Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations

